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OUR MISSION

In striving to become a world leader in the consumer electronics arena, we pledge to serve
customers with innovation and quality services, operate an efficient organization to create value
for all stakeholders and honour our responsibilities as a good global corporate citizen.
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Lau Sak Hong, Philip
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Lau Sak Yuk, Andy
Lau Chu Lan, Carol

Non-executive Director:
Hon Sheung Tin, Peter

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Ho Hau Chong, Norman

Chan Chak Chung

Chuck Winston Calptor

SECRETARY
Lo Tai On
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Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Hon Sheung Tin, Peter
Ho Hau Chong, Norman
Chan Chak Chung

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
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Hang Seng Bank Limited
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETR|ESE

Mr. Lau Sak Hong, Philip
e E )
Chairman /&

BUSINESS REVIEW

Results

The Group's results worsened as the global economy continued
into the fourth year of slowdown and instability. Our sales turnover
decreased by 1% to HK$632 million but our net loss increased to
HK$194 million from a net loss of HK$44 million in fiscal 2011.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ITR|MESE

Electronics Division

Last fiscal year we began to diversify our product mix by selling a
new line of digital imaging products. Our focus was to build up
the digital imaging sales to 35% of total sales turnover in fiscal
2012. We achieved only 8% as our digital imaging license with
Polaroid was cut short mutually in December 2011. Although the
license granted to us was exclusive in North America, we found
the selling off period granted to the previous licensee overlapped
and extended into our licensing period. We had difficulty in selling
to major distributors because the market was flooded with close
out products offered by the previous licensee. Our selling price
was also depressed due to competition from the close out offers.
Sale of our video, audio and karaoke products were similar to last
fiscal year.

Gross profit decreased to 9.6% from 16.4% in last fiscal year.
During the second half of this fiscal year, foreseeing the early
termination of the digital imaging license, we took quick steps to
sell off our digital camera products at near costs to eliminate most
of our inventory holdings. Gross profit on mid size LCD TV also
decreased on average of 6% from July 2011 to October 2011 due
to severe price competition. Prices in the other categories generally
decreased across the board in the second half of the fiscal year
as retailers in the US launched early price cutting wars to attract
holiday shoppers. We also made provisions to write down obsolete
raw materials and inventory, consists mostly of DVD players and
related components. The current consumer preference is to view

movies on-line thus making DVD players obsolete.

Selling and distribution expenses increased by HK$39 million or
39% over last fiscal year. This increase includes a one-off settlement
with Polaroid to terminate the digital imaging license. The other
increases include promotional funds to retailers in the US and
payments to the US environmental protecting agencies for electronic
waste disposal of TV products.

Administrative expenses decreased by HK$10 million or 9% over
last fiscal year due mainly to our continued effort to cut our payroll

expenses.

Finance costs were reduced by HK$0.7 million to HK$7.4 million

due to a lower level of borrowing.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETR|ESE

The Group reported a net loss of HK$194 million in this fiscal year.
The increase in net loss was caused by a decrease in the gross profit
from HK$105 million in fiscal 2011 to HK$60 million in fiscal 2012.
The increase in net loss was also due to an impairment/write-off
of HK$55 million of our assets in receivables, available-for-sale
investments, plant and equipment and goodwill on overseas
subsidiaries. Write-off receivables consisted of a non-refundable
advance payment to secure certain technology patent which was not
used and became expired. Impairment in an investment was a result
of a lower growth expectation of the investment unit. We wrote off
the residual carrying costs of our moulds which we no longer plan
to produce in the future. The goodwill impairment represents the
premium paid on the acquisition of overseas companies. Prolonged
economic downturn has caused those subsidiaries to under perform
over the last several years.

Securities Trading

The Group recorded a segment loss of HK$448,000 for the year.

Prospect

We will continue to implement cost cutting measures in our
operation in fiscal 2013. In November 2011, we consolidated two
factory production facilities into one building and began leasing the
other building for rental income. In administration, we combined
staff on two floors onto one floor and made available one floor
for leasing beginning in August 2012. These steps will increase
the Group’s rental revenue in fiscal 2013.

In product development, we are currently developing a new technology
product for home entertainment. We are optimistic this new product
and concept will be successful when launch in 2013.

We acknowledge the consumer electronic industry is facing many
challenges presently. Manufacturing costs keep rising and there
are significant labor shortage in Southern China. Selling prices
continue to deteriorate due to weak consumer spending globally.
We will address these challenges by engaging external consultants
to advise on any business re-engineering plans to improve the
performance of the Group.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ITR|MESE

The net loss we experienced in fiscal 2012 was disappointing.
Management is positive that we will implement plans to overcome

the current challenges in our operation in fiscal 2013.

FINANCIAL POSITION

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The financial position of the Group remained stable. As at 31
March 2012, cash and bank deposits amounted to HK$91 million,
as compared to HK$69 million last year.

Gearing ratio calculated as total borrowings to shareholders’ funds
was 0.39 (2011: 0.38), and net borrowings to shareholders’ funds
was 0.21 for the year (2011: 0.27). Current ratio calculated as current
assets to current liabilities changed to 1.37 from 1.48 last year.

Financing and Capital Structure

The Group finances its operations by combination of equity and
borrowings. As at 31 March 2012, the Group’s total borrowings is
about HK$199 million (2011: HK$253 million), of which the whole
amount is repayable within one year. Net borrowings, calculated as
borrowings less bank balances and cash, is HK$108 million (2011:
HK$184 million).

The Group’s transactions were mostly denominated in US dollars
and Hong Kong dollars. The exposure to exchange rate risk was
insignificant.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 March 2012, the Group pledged certain assets with carrying
value of HK$191 million (2011: HK$177 million) to secure general
credit facilities and margin accounts with securities brokers.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2012, the Group had no contingent liabilities.

STAFF

As at 31 March 2012, the Group had a total staff of 730 of which
680 were employed in the PRC for the Group’s manufacturing and
distribution business.

The Group provides employee benefits such as staff insurance,
retirement scheme, discretionary bonus and share option scheme
and also provides in-house training programmes and external
training sponsorship.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S PROFILE

EENSREEAEBEH

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Philip Lau Sak Hong, aged 65, was appointed an executive
director of the Company on 26 September 1989. He is also the
Chairman and Managing Director of the Company. He has been
in the Group for 42 years and over 42 years of management
experience in the electronics industry. Mr. Lau did not hold any
directorship in other listed public companies in the last three years.
Mr. Lau is also a director in a number of subsidiaries of the Group
of the Company. He is the brother of Mr. Anthony Lau Sak Kai,
Mr. Andy Lau Sak Yuk, Ms. Carol Lau Chu Lan, Mr. Eric Lau Shek
Hung and Mr. Jacky Lau Sek Hoi who are executive directors or
senior management of the Company.

Mr. Anthony Lau Sak Kai, aged 62, was appointed an executive
director of the Company on 26 September 1989. Mr. Lau has
been in the Group for 40 years and is responsible for the Group'’s
overall production management in China and also in charge of
the research & development of the Group. Mr. Lau did not hold
any directorship in other listed public companies in the last three
years. Mr. Lau is also a director of a number of subsidiaries of the
Group of the Company. He is the brother of Mr. Philip Lau Sak
Hong, Mr. Andy Lau Sak Yuk, Ms. Carol Lau Chu Lan, Mr. Eric Lau
Shek Hung and Mr. Jacky Lau Sek Hoi who are executive directors
or senior management of the Company.

Mr. Andy Lau Sak Yuk, aged 62, was appointed an executive
director of the Company on 26 September 1989. He is in charge
of the research and development of the Group and has been in the
Group for 40 years. Mr. Lau did not hold any directorship in other
listed public companies in the last three years. Mr. Lau is also a
director in a number of subsidiaries of the Group of the Company.
He is the brother of Mr. Philip Lau Sak Hong, Mr. Anthony Lau Sak
Kai, Ms. Carol Lau Chu Lan, Mr. Eric Lau Shek Hung and Mr. Jacky
Lau Sek Hoi who are executive directors or senior management of
the Company.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S PROFILE

EENSHREEABEH

Ms. Lau Chu Lan, Carol, aged 63, was appointed an executive
director of the Company on 23 July 2010. She is also the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company. She has 35 years of experience
in financial management, business consultation, financial and
regulatory auditing. Ms. Lau serves as an Interim Chief Financial
Officer and Chairwoman of the Board of The Singing Machine
Company, Inc., and serves as Chief Financial Officer of Cosmo
Communications Corporation, which are subsidiaries of the
Company and both are registered as public listed companies in
the United States. Save as disclosed above, she did not hold any
directorship of other public listed company in the last three years.
Ms. Lau is the sister of Mr. Lau Sak Hong, Philip, Mr. Anthony Lau
Sak Kai, Mr. Andy Lau Sak Yuk, Mr. Eric Lau Shek Hung and Mr.
Jacky Lau Sek Hoi who are executive directors or senior management
of the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Hon Sheung Tin, Peter, aged 71, had been an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 1988 and re-designated
as non-executive director of the Company on 28 September 2004.
He has been practising as a solicitor in Hong Kong for over 42
years. He retired as Senior Partner of Messrs. Hon & Co., Solicitors
& Notaries since 1 April 2008 and remains as consultant. He is a
director of Starlight Industrial Holdings Limited and The Singing
Machine Company, Inc. where both are subsidiaries of the Company.
He is a member of audit committee, remuneration committee and

nomination committee of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Norman Ho Hau Chong, aged 56, was appointed independent
non-executive director of the Company on 1 October 1998. He is a
member of audit committee of the Company. He holds a Bachelor of
Arts degree from the University of Exeter, and is a member of the
Institute of Chartered Accounts in England and Wales, a Fellow of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has over
25 years of experience in management and property development.
He is a director in Hong Kong Ferry (Holdings) Company Limited, Lee
Hing Development Limited, Miramar Hotel & Investment Company
Limited, Shun Tak Holdings Limited and Vision Values Holdings Ltd,
all of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S PROFILE

EENSREEAEBEH

Mr. Chan Chak Chung, aged 54, was appointed director of the
Company on 30 September 2004. He is an Independent Non-executive
Director. He is also a member of audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee of the Company. He is a
qualified accountant with about 31 years in the public accountancy
profession. He holds a Master degree in Business Administration.
He is an associate member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants of United Kingdom. He did not hold any directorship
in other listed public companies in the last three years.

Mr. Chuck Winston Calptor, aged 56, was appointed director of
the Company on 30 September 2004. He is an Independent Non-
executive Director. He is also a member of remuneration committee
and nomination committee of the Company. He has been practising
as a solicitor in Hong Kong over 30 years. He holds a Bachelor
Degree of Arts from University of Ontario, Canada. He is also an
independent non-executive director of ITC Corporation Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lau Shek Hung, Eric, aged 56, a brother of Mr. Lau Sak
Hong, Philip, is a Director of a major subsidiary of the Group. He
is responsible for the Group's electronic products business. He has
been in the Group for 16 years and has over 23 years of experience
in the electronics field.

Mr. Lau Sek Hoi, Jacky, aged 53, a brother of Mr. Lau Sak Hong,
Philip, is a Director of a major subsidiary of the Group. He is holding
a science degree from one Australian university and is currently
responsible for the Group’s material sourcing, purchasing and control
activities. He has been in the Group for 27 years.

Gary Atkinson, aged 31, joined The Singing Machine Company, Inc.
in January 2008 and was appointed as the interim Chief Executive
Officer in November 2009. Mr. Atkinson is a licensed attorney in
the State of Florida and Georgia. He graduated from the University
of Rochester with a Bachelors Degree in Economics and has been
awarded a dual-degree J.D./M.B.A. from Case Western Reserve
University School of Law and Weatherhead School of Management.
Mr. Atkinson is the nephew of Mr. Lau Sak Hong, Philip and son
of Ms. Lau Chu Lan, Carol.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S PROFILE

EENSHREEABEH

Mr. Peter Horak, aged 73, was appointed Chief Executive Officer
of Cosmo in January 2001. He is the co-founder of Cosmo Canada
and has been its CEO since 1988. Mr. Horak has extensive knowledge
and experience in distribution of consumer electronics products in
Canada. Prior to joining Cosmo Canada in 1982, Mr. Horak worked
with several top electronic companies and served as Sanyo's Vice
President of Sales and Marketing. He leads the sales team to open
new markets and develop new products and works closely with the
administrative group and warehouse supporting group.

Mr. Jeff Horak, aged 53, joined one of the Group US subsidiary
Cosmo Communications Canada Inc. as Vice President of Sales
& Marketing since 1981. He is responsible for sales, business
development of foreign markets and develops various product lines,
which Cosmo distribute.

Starlight International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2012
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance. The board of directors of the Company
("the Board”) firmly believes that to maintain a good, solid
and sensible framework of corporate governance will ensure
the Company to run its business in the best interests of its
shareholders as a whole.

The Company adopted all the code provisions in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices™® (“the Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (“the Listing Rules”) as its own code on corporate
governance practices.

Note: The Code on Corporate Governance Practices has been amended
by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and now known
as Corporate Governance Code with effect from 1 April 2012.
During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Company has
complied with the Code except the following:

1. Pursuant to code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman

and chief executive officer of an issuer should be
separated and should not be performed by the same
individual. The division of responsibilities between the
chairman and chief executive officer should be clearly
established and set out in writing. Mr. Philip Lau Sak
Hong is currently the chairman and managing director
of the Company. Having considered the current business
operation and the size of the Group, the Board is of
the view that Mr. Lau acting as both the chairman and
managing director of the Company is acceptable and in
the best interest of the Company. The Board will review
this situation periodically.
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2. The Company was incorporated in Bermuda and enacted
by private act, the Starlight International Holdings Limited
Company Act, 1989 of Bermuda (the “1989 Act”). Pursuant
to section 3(e) of the 1989 Act, director holding office as
executive chairman or managing director shall not be subject
to retirement by rotation at each annual general meeting as
provided in the bye-laws of the Company (“the Bye-laws").
As the Company is bound by the provisions of the 1989
Act, the Bye-laws cannot be amended to fully reflect the
requirements of the code provision A.4.2 which stipulates
that every director, including those appointed for a specific
term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.

To enhance good corporate governance practices, Mr. Philip Lau
Sak Hong, the chairman and managing director of the Company
will voluntarily retire from his directorship at annual general
meeting of the Company at least once every three years in order
for the Company to comply with the Code, provided that, being
eligible for re-election, he may offer himself for re-election at
the annual general meeting.

The Board has updated its corporate governance principles and
practices by adopting the revised code provisions contained in the
Corporate Governance Code in the Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
with effect from 1 April 2012. It also approved the revised terms of
reference of the audit committee and remuneration committee and
the establishment of a nomination committee on the said date.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is charged with leading the Group in a responsible and
effective manner. Each director has to carry out his/her duties in
utmost good faith above and beyond any prevailing applicable laws
and regulations and act in the best interests of the shareholders.
The duties of the Board include establishing the strategic direction
of the Group, setting objectives and monitoring the performance
of the Group.

The Board has established schedule of matters specifically reserved to
the Board for its decision and those reserved for the management.
The Board reviews this schedule on a periodic basis to ensure that
it remains appropriate to the needs of the Company.
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The Board consists of four executive directors, three independent
non-executive directors and one non-executive director. Their brief
biographical details and relationship, if any, are described on page
7 of the Annual Report.

The independent non-executive directors, all of whom are independent
of the management of the Company, are highly experienced
professionals coming from a diversified background. They ensure
that the Board maintains high standards of financial and other
mandatory reporting as well as providing adequate check and
balance of safeguard the interest of shareholders and the Company
as a whole.

Each of the independent non-executive directors and non-executive
director has entered into an appointment letter with the Company
pursuant to which each of them is appointed for service with
the Company from 1 October 2011 to 30 September 2013. The
appointment shall terminate on the earlier of (i) 30 September
2013, or (ii) the date on which the director ceases to be director
for any reasons pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company or any
other applicable laws.

The full Board meets no less than four times a year to review the
financial and operating performance of the Group. Additional board
meetings were held when necessary. Due notice and board papers
were given to all directors prior to the meeting in accordance
with the Listing Rules and the Code. The Board has established
procedure to enable directors, upon reasonable request, to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at
the Company’s expenses.
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There were four (4) regular Board meetings held in the financial
year ended 31 March 2012. The attendance record of each director
is shown below. All business transacted at the above meetings are
well-documented and maintained in accordance with applicable

laws and regulations.

REE-Z-——F=A=+—-HIWHFE  Z&
THAREERIE BREFTZHFELHZY
T e B EEEE 2 A EHHRBEREN X
RIGZ BRos N FE

No. of board

meeting attended

Name of directors BEEHA HEREEZRHERE
Philip Lau Sak Hong 2185 B 4
Anthony Lau Sak Kai 21855 4
Andy Lau Sak Yuk 21458 4
Carol Lau Chu Lan g 4
Peter Hon Sheung Tin Lyl 4
Norman Ho Hau Chong ] [Z 4 3
Chan Chak Chung PR 2 b 3
Chuck Winston Calptor 25 3

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company had adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules (“the Model Code”), as the code of conduct regarding
director’s securities transactions.

The Company has made specific enquiry of all directors that they
have complied with the Model Code throughout the year ended
31 March 2012.

In addition, the Board also established written guidelines on no
less exacting terms than the Model Code for senior management
of the Company in respect of their dealings in the securities of
the Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To strengthen the functions of the Board and to enhance its expertise,
there are three Board committees namely, the audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee formed under
the Board, with each performing different functions.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee, which is chaired by Mr. Norman Ho Hau
Chong, has been established with defined terms of reference in
alignment with the recommendations set out in “A Guide for
Effective Audit Committees” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code of the Listing Rules. Other members
are Mr. Peter Hon Sheung Tin and Mr. Chan Chak Chung.

The audit committee meets no less than twice a year with the
senior management or the external auditors. The role and function
of the audit committee include: to review the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group and other financial reporting
matters, to assure the completeness, accuracy and fairness of
the financial statement of the Group, discuss the effectiveness of
the systems of internal control throughout the Group and most
importantly, and to review all significant business affairs managed
by the executive directors in particular on connected transactions.
The committee also provides advice and recommendations to the
Board and oversees all matters relating to the external auditors,
and it plays an important role in monitoring and safeguarding the
independence of external auditors.

The audit committee met three (3) times during the financial year
ended 31 March 2012. Work undertaken by the audit committee
included:

- reviewing of the financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2011 and for the six months ended 30 September
2011; and

- reviewing of the auditors’ fees and its re-appointment.

- reviewing internal control and risk management system.

The attendance record of each member is shown below. All business

transacted at the above meetings are well-documented and maintained
in accordance with applicable laws and regulations.
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No. of audit
committee

meeting attended

Name of audit committee member BREESEEHE HEBRZEESRRH
Norman Ho Hau Chong E)=E
Peter Hon Sheung Tin FEHEH
Chan Chak Chung iR 22 {rf

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee which is chaired by Mr. Chan Chak
Chung, has been established with defined terms of reference. Other
members are Mr. Peter Hon Sheung Tin and Mr. Chuck Winston Calptor.

The Company aims to design remuneration policies that attract
and retain executive needed to run the Group successfully and to
motivate executives to pursue appropriate growth strategies whilst
taking into account performance of the individual. The remuneration
should reflect performance, complexity and responsibility of the
individual; and the remuneration package will be structured to
include salary, bonus and share options scheme to provide incentives
to directors and senior management to improve their individual

performances.

The role and function of the remuneration committee include
formulation of the remuneration policy, review and recommending
to the Board the annual remuneration policy, and determination
of the remuneration of the executive directors.

Work undertaken by the remuneration committee during the year
included:

- reviewing of the remuneration policy for 2011/2012; and

- reviewing of the remuneration of the executive directors
and the independent non-executive directors.

The remuneration committee meets once during the financial year
ended 31 March 2012 with the presence of all members.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board had not established a nomination committee during
the year ended 31 March 2012. According to the Bye-laws of the
Company, the Board has the power from time to time and at any
time to appoint any person as a director either to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board. In assessing nomination
of new directors, the Board will take into consideration of the
nominee’s qualification, ability and potential contributions to the
Company. There was no change in the directorship during the year
ended 31 March 2012.

The Board has established a nomination committee with effect
from 1 April 2012.

The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Chan Chak Chung
with Mr. Peter Hon Sheung Tin and Mr. Chuk Winston Calptor as
members. The majority of the members of the Nomination Committee
are independent non-executive Directors.

It is responsible for reviewing the Board composition and identifying
and nominating candidates for appointment to the Board such
that it has the relevant blend of skills, knowledge and experience.
Candidates for appointment as Directors may be sourced internally
or externally through various channels such as using the services of
specialist executive search firms. The aim is to appoint individuals
of the highest calibre in their area of expertise and experience.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration in respect of services provided by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu for the Group for the year ended 31 March 2012 are
analysed as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITY FOR PREPARING THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management provides the explanation and information to the
Board to facilitate an informed assessment of the financial and
other information put before the Board for approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare the
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group. Meanwhile, the Directors are responsible
for ensuring that appropriate accounting policies are selected and
applied consistently; and that judgments and estimates made are
prudent and reasonable. In preparing the financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2012, the accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong have been adopted and the requirements of
the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the applicable

laws were complied with.

The Board was not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that might cast significant doubt upon the
Group'’s ability to continue as going concern. The Board has prepared
the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The reporting responsibilities of external auditor of the Company
are disclosed in “Independent Auditor’s Report”.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound and
effective internal control system of the Group. The system includes
a defined management structure with limits of authority, safeguard
its assets against unauthorized use of disposition, ensures the
maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of
reliable financial information for internal use or for publication,
and ensures compliances with relevant laws and regulations. The
system is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss, and to manage the risks of
failure in the Group’s operational systems and in the achievement
of the Group’s objectives.
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During the year, the Company has conducted review the effectiveness
of system of internal control including risk management system and
also the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function. The
report and findings has been submitted to the Board and follow-up
plan has been adopted based on recommendations. The Board also
reviewed adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function,
and their training programmes and budget.

SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION

The objective of shareholder communication is to provide our
shareholders with detailed information about the Company so
that they can exercise their rights as shareholders in an informed

manner.

The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure its
shareholders are kept well informed of key business imperatives.
These include annual general meeting, annual report, various notices,
announcements and circulars. Procedure for voting by poll has been
read out by the chairman at the general meeting.

At the 2011 annual general meeting, separate resolution was
proposed by the Chairman in respect of each separate issue, including
re-election of directors and was voted by way of poll. The Chairman
of the Board of directors and members of audit committee and
remuneration committee attended the 2011 annual general meeting
to answer questions from shareholders.

CONCLUSION

The Company strongly believes that the quality and standard of
corporate governance reflects the quality of the management and
the operations of the Group’s business. Good corporate governance
can safeguard the proper use of funds and effective allocation of
resources and to protect shareholders’ interests. The management
wholeheartedly advocated of the good practice in corporate
governance and will try our best to maintain, strengthen and improve
the standard and quality of the Group’s corporate governance.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the design, manufacture and sale of a
wide range of electronic products and securities trading.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2012 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
on page 38.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2012.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements during the year in the investment
properties of the Group are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the year in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in note 30 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

There is no reserve available for distribution to shareholders as at
31 March 2012.
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DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive directors:
Lau Sak Hong, Philip
Lau Sak Kai, Anthony
Lau Sak Yuk, Andy
Lau Chu Lan, Carol

Non-executive director:
Hon Sheung Tin, Peter

Independent non-executive directors:
Ho Hau Chong, Norman

Chan Chak Chung

Chuck Winston Calptor

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-law 82, Mr. Lau Sak Yuk,
Andy, Ms. Lau Chu Lan, Carol and Mr. Hon Sheung Tin, Peter will
retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

Independent non-executive directors have been appointed for a term
of two years until 30 September 2013 and are subject to retirement
by rotation as required by the Company’s Bye-laws.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

No contract of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year (2011: Mr. Lau Sak Hong, Philip,
a substantial shareholder of the Company, has provided a personal
guarantee to indemnify the Group for any impairment of an unlisted
available-for-sale investment to the extent of HK$15 million).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2012, the interests and short positions of the directors
or chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO")) which are required (a) to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they are
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b)
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (c) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) in
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange were as follows:

EECESER
HET-—"F=ZA=1+—H @QREEHFLHE
BT &5 R IR G ) BEXVEBE7 R8N B 2R
EAMEARB RBRA(BEREESF RE K
flzEs MABSARRRBFEEDIKR)
F(b)RIERE 5 N B E 150 352 (AR BN AR R A
RIBZGEPIMRZELZM  f(ORBHMIAES L
TRATETRDZ LFRRAERETESRS
R ZEST A ([R5 A D) BB A AR R R B AP
ARBEBEFLATIBZTBRABRARARBERA
(EZRRBHFLBEGRIIEXVE) 2By - BEK
EkESHR ZEm AR IT ¢

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

Long position/ Number of as at
Name of directors short position Capacity shares held 31 March 2012
R-B——&
=A=+—H
EEuA BB %#& 14 HREE FREANES
Executive directors:
HITES
Lau Sak Hong, Philip Long position Beneficial owner 184,681,452 12.35%
2185 R R EmfAA
Interest of controlled 5,697,497 0.38%
corporation (note a)
ERARES 2w
(fizEa)
Interest of controlled 18,180,747 1.22%
corporation (note b)
EIRABER Z
(Pf5ED)
Held by trust (note ¢) 304,324,576 20.34%
EFEESIHA (M)
512,884,272 34.29%
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES BEEESEER(E)
(CONT’'D)
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
Long position/ Number of as at
Name of directors short position Capacity shares held 31 March 2012
R-ZE——F
=A=+-—H
EFEHE RR %R 54 EREAE BERENBE DL
Executive directors: - continued
HITESE &
Lau Sak Kai, Anthony Long position Beneficial owner 69,648,904 4.65%
2858 &AE EmEAA
Interest of controlled 5,697,497 0.38%
corporation (note a)
TRNRER 2=
(FtzEa)
Interest of controlled 18,180,747 1.22%
corporation (note b)
TRNRIER 2=
(KzEDb)
93,527,148 6.25%
Lau Sak Yuk, Andy Long position Beneficial owner 67,513,401 4.51%
2158 =9} EmEAA
Interest of controlled 5,697,497 0.38%
corporation (note a)
ERNTEB 2=
(Mtzxa)
Interest of controlled 18,180,747 1.22%
corporation (note b)
ERNTEE 2=
(MzEDb)
91,391,645 6.11%
Lau Chu Lan, Carol Long position Beneficial owner 384,483 0.03%
2R E B EmBEAA
-
fmaEnaraa [, |
—E-—FFR
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

(CONT’D)

EEvRSER(E)

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

Long position/ Number of as at
Name of directors short position Capacity shares held 31 March 2012
R=F-—=F
=A=+—H
BEHA BB %& =40 HREE FREANES
Non-executive director:
FHITES :
Hon Sheung Tin, Peter Long position Beneficial owner 372,181 0.02%
%A EA BAEHA
Independent non-executive director:
BAFHITES :
Chuck Winston Calptor Long position Beneficial owner 770,000 0.05%
BE KA HaslA A
Interest of controlled 616,000 0.04%
corporation (note d)
ERAPER 2
(PFF&Ed)
1,386,000 0.09%
Notes: (T
(a) These shares are held by K.K. Nominees Limited, a company which  (a) ZERG B BHRPGE  YEHHEKIGR
is wholly and beneficially owned by Lau Sak Hong, Philip, Lau (EREMREKANEGHEI AXREK])E2E
Sak Kai, Anthony and Lau Sak Yuk, Andy (hereinafter collectively BB 2 AFK.K. Nominees Limited#¥
with other family members referred to as the “Lau’s family”). A e

(b) These shares are held by Wincard Management Services Limited,
a company which is wholly and beneficially owned by the Lau’s

family.

(@) These shares are wholly and beneficially owned by Philip Lau
Holding Corporation, a company beneficially owned by a
discretionary trust, the discretionary objects of which include
Lau Sak Hong, Philip and his associates.

(d) These shares are wholly and beneficially owned by Gather Profit
Corporate Services Limited, a company beneficially owned by
Ms. Kung King Man, Inna, being the wife of Mr. Chuck Winston
Calpotr. Mr. Chuck Winston Calptor therefore is deemed to be

interests in these shares.

Annual Report 2012
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES
(CONT’'D)

Save as disclosed above and other than certain nominee shares
in subsidiaries held by directors in trust for the Company or its
subsidiaries, as at 31 March 2012, none of the directors or chief
executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) as notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or as recorded
in the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SHARE OPTIONS

Share options of the Company

The Company has a share option scheme which was approved and
adopted at the special general meeting of the Company held on 12
September 2002 (the “Old Scheme"”) for a period of 5 years. The
primary purpose was to provide incentives or rewards to participants
for their contribution to the Group. Eligible participants of the
Old Scheme included any employees, non-executive directors,
suppliers of goods or services, customers, advisors or consultants
and shareholders of any member of the Group.

The maximum number of share options which might be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Old Scheme must
not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the shares in issue while overall
limit for all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
must not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the option granted to each participant (except substantial
shareholder, independent non-executive director, or their respective
associates) in any 12 month period up to the date of the grant
should not exceed 1% of the shares in issue.

The period within which the shares should be taken up under an
option was any period as determined by the Board, which should
not be more than 5 years from the date on which the option was
granted. The option might be exercised by the grantee at any time
during the option period.

EEcRESER(E)

B EXPEE R ELEEURRFHENE R
XRAGDRHEMNB AR 2ETRIEARMDS - 7
TR CH =A==+ -HBYRARRREMEFL
TETHRABRARAHEBBEAR(EERES
KRG AGHIEXVED) 2 Bty ~ MR & 5+ B
BIRBEES RBEHOIEXVE7R8D BT AM
SARARBERFT  HARBRARRREES K
HERMIFEI2EATHFEZECMIREEFELEST
QRS RNRAR LB 2 R IORR °

Bk
AT ZWRE

ARRARZZZEZFNATZHRITZRERFRIAKX
CLRBRBAMAF ZEREEI(TERE) -
FTEEMNERSBREH2EEHAEEEL T
Bt BB AER2HEREASETMAKER
AIZEBT  EWNTEE FmARBHES B
- BAARERRRE

RBE MR 2B BRABEITEM A fEE1T
ZERENEE  TEBBERTRMNZ10% - M
SR R EARTTEZ A B IR S KB D B8
BB TR D ETRMZ30% °

BEBREREZRILN2EARN F28E(T2
BR - -BUIFATEERRESEBEZHEALR
SMTTE BRI M BT RS T EHIT 2RO BB
BEEREETRNZ1% -

REBEERBRND ZHRBEERRE - ELA
RERERH AR EBRF - ARATRBRE
HABR N B I T (B A o

FEEBRERAT o5 |4
—E-CFFR
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SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’'D)
Share options of the Company (CONT'D)

The subscription price of the share options was determined by the
Board, but would be no less than the highest of (i) the closing price
of the shares on the offer date; (ii) the average of the closing price
of the shares of the 5 trading days immediately preceding the offer
date; or (iii) the nominal value of the shares on the offer date.

The offer of a grant of share options could be accepted within 21
days from the date of offer. The consideration for the grant was
HK$1 and it would in no circumstance be refundable.

The Old Scheme expired on 11 September 2007 and thereafter,
no more option could be granted pursuant to the Old Scheme.
In respect of the options already granted under the Old Scheme,
the provisions shall remain in force. The movements of the share
options granted to employees of the Group pursuant to the Old
Scheme were as follows:

BREGE)
ADT 2B ()

BEREZRBEREZRRRAE HEEHERBTEE
RAT&ESE - (DROPREREBRZWTHE (i)
DREERBAPIAEARS A ZFHETE - X
(RO R XL E B EE -

BREBREZZOTEREAREF2IARNE
e REBREZREREBL ZeBEEMAE
ST AATRIE ©

EfgER 2L FAA+—RHER K& B
TAREE SR HBRE - MRBEFECESL
ZBRENE  BREXBNABR - REBEEFE
ERTAREREZBREZESHERNOT ¢

Number of share options

BREHE
Outstanding Cancelled/forfeited Outstanding
Exercise as at during as at
Date of grant price 1.4.2011 the year 31.3.2012
Kog--% R=Z-_f
mA—-H FR =A=1-H
REAH e 1 RATEE B/ Rk HRATHE
HK$
BT
13 November 2006 0.3100 6,354,400 (6,354,400) -
“EERET-AT=H
4 January 2007 0.3549 1,028,984 (1,028,984) -
—2Z+5-AMA
1 February 2007 0.3677 187,088 (187,088) -
“EEtE5-A-H
7 March 2007 0.4126 14,031,600 (14,031,600) -
“EELF=A+tA
21,602,072 (21,602,072) -

Starlight International Holdings Limited
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SHARE OPTIONS (CONT'D)
Share options of the Company (CONT'D)

Notes:

(a) The above options were granted for an exercise period of five
years from the date of grant of the options.

(b) No option was granted, cancelled or exercised during the year.

A new share option scheme (the “"New Scheme”) was approved
and adopted at the special general meeting of the Company held
on 15 January 2008 for a period of 10 years. The primary purpose
is to recognise the contribution of participants and to recruit and
retain high calibre employees and attract human resources that
are valuable to the Group. Eligible participants of the New Scheme
included any full time employees (including directors, whether
executive or non-executive and whether independent or not),
suppliers, consultants, agents and advisors of the Group.

The maximum number of share options which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the New Scheme must
not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the shares in issue at the adoption
date of the New Scheme on 15 January 2008 while overall limit for
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised must not
exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the option granted to each participant in any 12 month period
up to the date of the grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in
issue unless certain conditions are fulfilled.

The period within which the shares must be taken up under an
option is any period as determined by the Board, which shall
not be more than 10 years from the date on which the option is
granted. The option may be exercised by the grantee at any time
during the option period.

The subscription price of the share options is determined by the
Board, but will be no less than the highest of (i) the closing price
of the shares on the offer date; (ii) the average of the closing price
of shares on the 5 trading days immediately preceding the offer
date; or (iii) the nominal value of the shares on the offer date.

The offer of a grant of share options can be accepted within 28
days from the date of offer. The consideration for the grant is
HK$1 and it will in no circumstance be refundable.

BREGE)
ADRZWBRME(D)
fit s

(@) NEBBRERAREARERFAITE -

by MNAFEATEBREERL  FTHX
TTME ©

ARBR-_ZENF-ATHHEETZRERER
ARE LBBRAAEI0F 23 B gt 81( &t
)  TZEMERKRELBEEZER HER
BREEFEEMNBINAEHARTEREEIA
o8z A ER2REREAREZ2BIES
(BREF  THPTIGENT R RELKIFE
i) HER - BAA  RERERM -

RABFETBIFTIR I 2 P BB AR 1T (0 1 AJ BE 37T
ZEREBRNER  TRBEFNAER _EENEF—
ATHARMABZEETRDZ210%  MERH
R W RAT 2 P A BB IHE P8 K B An AR BTN 1S iR 3B
TEEETRNZ30% °

HEBRERDZA2EARN  Z28ETEE
PR T RS T ETZROEBBETTBREERE
BT Z1% » BRIFE TIRIFEZRR -

REBRERBRND ZHARBESZTRRE @ EDA
REBRER L ARFEBI10F - ARARTRERE
HABR A () B R 7T o B AR A -

BREZRBEMEZRRE  EEHEBRTFE
RAT&EE - (DROPRERE B RHZWHE (i)
DREERHASIAERS A2 FHRHE - X
(RO NE L B2 EE -

OBz ZHRT B B BE28H A
REBREZRER/ETL  ZeBEEFMBERT
A ARE -

I
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SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’'D)
Share options of the Company (CONT'D)

The movements of the share options granted to employees and
an advisor of the Group pursuant to the New Scheme were as
follows:

BRE(E)

ADTZBRA(A)

R AR E T AR ERE R — 24BN BRE
SHERDOT -

Number of share options

BREHE
Cancelled/
Outstanding Granted forfeited  Outstanding Market
Exercise as at during during as at value
Date of grant Notes price 1.4.2011 the year the year 31.3.2012 per share*
RZE--% RZB-ZF
MA—-8 FR ER =A=+-H
REAH P sx 7B i RATHE 2R B/ Rl B RTE BhRmE*
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Employees:
EE
28 January 2008 (a) 0.2053 858,311 - - 858,311 N/A
“EE\F-A=tNH TiEm
15 October 2008 (a) 0.0855 2,338,600 - (2,338,600) - N/A
—FF\5+ATER T
31 August 2010 (a) 0.1880 12,000,000 - - 12,000,000 N/A
“Z-ZFN\A=1-H A
29 November 2011 (b) 0.1090 - 12,500,000 - 12,500,000 0.105
“E——F+-A=thH
15,196,911 12,500,000 (2,338,600) 25,358,311
An advisor:
_%@FEE]
23 January 2008 (a) 0.2228 701,580 - - 701,580 N/A
“ZZ)\F-A=t=H i F
12 August 2010 (a) 0.1880 300,000 - - 300,000 N/A
“T-ZF\A+ZH TEH
1 February 2012 (b) 0.1080 - 1,500,000 - 1,500,000 0.109
“Z-Z%-f-H
1,001,580 1,500,000 - 2,501,580
16,198,491 14,000,000 (2,338,600) 27,859,891
* Being the closing price of the Company’s ordinary shares  * BIAN A a) E iR E R AR L B BB AT 2
immediately before the dates on which the options were g -
granted.
Notes: BIsE -
(a) These options were granted for an exercise period of ten years  (a) ZEBBRETART AHBREHFERNITE o
from the date of grant of the options.
(b) These options were granted for an exercise period of five years  (b) ZEBBRET AR BB RFERNITE -
from the date of grant of the options.
(0) No option was exercised or lapsed during the year. () RAFE A EEREE TSR -

L 28 Starlight International Holdings Limited
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EERBES

SHARE OPTIONS (CONT'D)

Share options of The Singing Machine Company, Inc. (“SMC"),
a 51.69% owned subsidiary of the Company

Particulars of the share option scheme of SMC (the “SMC Scheme")
are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

The movements of the share options granted to directors of the
Company pursuant to the SMC Scheme were as follows:

Name of director

Date of grant

BREE
KAFEE51.69%E= 2K B2 TThe Singing
Machine Company, Inc.([SMC]) Z &R #E

SMCHERI T EI([SMCETEI ) 2 BERBRA Y
TEMEMTFE3T -

BESMCEH BIRAA T E BB BREZ 2R
ST

Number of
share options
outstanding
as at 1.4.2011

Exercise price and 31.3.2012

R-—ZE——F
MA—BRK
—E—-—F
ZA=+T—HHERK
EFEHE REBH TEE TEZIEREHE
uss$
e
Lau Chu Lan, Carol 31 March 2008 0.45 20,000
G —EENF=A=1+—H
31 March 2009 0.11 20,000
—EENF=ZA=+—H
40,000
Hon Sheung Tin, Peter 31 March 2008 0.45 20,000
5% 15 H —EENF=ZA=+—H
31 March 2009 0.11 20,000
—EEAF=ZA=+—H
40,000
-
HAERERA 1|
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SHARE OPTIONS (CONT'D) B (E

Share options of The Singing Machine Company, Inc. (“SMC”), ZA&RAF#H51.69%E% 2K B2 FThe Singing
a 51.69% owned subsidiary of the Company (CONT'D) Machine Company, Inc.([SMCl) ZBERE(E)

The movements of the share options granted to directors of the IRIESMCEHE DR TFAQAREERAEEES 2

Company and employees of the Group, pursuant to the SMC iz EZhEHWNT -
Scheme were as follows:

Number of share options

BREHE
Outstanding Granted  Outstanding Market
Exercise as at during as at value
Date of grant price 1.4.2011 the year 31.3.2012 per share*
RZE-——F RZE-Zf
mA—-H =ZA=1-H
REEH ke B RAT FRERE i RATRE BRME*
Us$ uss$
e e
31 December 2002 ZERCETZA=+-H 9.00 4,000 - 4,000 N/A TEA
19 December 2003 ZER=ETZATAA 1.97 4,880 - 4,880 N/A TEA
6 February 2004 —EEME-ARA 1.54 6,500 - 6,500 N/A TEA
26 February 2004 “ETNF-R=FA 1.36 20,000 - 20,000 N/A TEA
29 March 2004 ZEEME=A=+NAH 1.20 20,000 - 20,000 N/A TEA
29 November 2004 —ZEMET-AZTNR 0.75 40,000 - 40,000 N/A TEA
1 December 2004 —ZEMET-A-H 0.77 20,000 - 20,000 N/A TEA
9 May 2005 “ZERERANA 0.60 34,000 - 34,000 N/A TEA
31 March 2006 ZEERE=A=+-H 0.32 60,000 - 60,000 N/A TEA
10 April 2006 —ZTRENATH 0.33 42,000 - 42,000 N/A TEA
31 March 2007 ZERLE=A=t+-H 0.93 60,000 - 60,000 N/A TEA
31 March 2008 ZEEN\F=A=+-H 0.45 120,000 - 120,000 N/A TEA
31 March 2009 ZEEAF=A=+-H 0.1 120,000 - 120,000 N/A TEA
31 March 2010 ZE-RF=A=+-H 0.03 60,000 - 60,000 N/A TEA
29 October 2010 —Z-ZEtAZTNR 0.06 520,000 - 520,000 N/A TEA
31 March 2011 —E-—%=A=t-H 0.04 60,000 - 60,000 N/A TEA
31 March 2012 ZE-Z¥=A=t-H 0.12 - 60,000 60,000 0.1
1,191,380 60,000 1,251,380

* Being the closing price of SMC's ordinary shares immediately — * BISMCEBIREEEBRER L A 8T 2

before the dates on which the options were granted. W (g o

Starlight International Holdings Limited
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ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share options as disclosed above, at no time during
the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2012, the following persons, other than the interest
disclosed above in respect of the directors, had interest in 5% or
more in the shares and underlying shares of the Company have
notified to the Company and have been recorded in the register
of substantial shareholders’ interests in shares and short positions
required to be kept under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO:

BEROIEZ 2L H

%L XHE BRIES  AARAREEANEAR
RAFERBESEEMLE  BAATNEFLHE
IR A TR E M EAA B RO REST
BASFS -

FERRER

RZE-—ZF=A=+—H U TFTAT(FHREXH
BREMEZESABzREINBEBRARABIRNG RHEHE
BH5%RIA E 2R - WEMSARARDEER
RARRBHF LB GANEXVEEI6KAERE
ZEERERMDER AR BELTMA -

Number of % of total issued

ordinary shares in shares as at

Name Capacity which interested 31 March 2012
Rom—=%F

=A=+t—HMHEE

i 54 BELBRYE TRAEE 2T DL
Lee Yu Chiang (note) Beneficial owner 42,140,878 2.82%

FHE(HE) EmEAA

Save as mentioned above and in the section headed “Directors’
Interests in Securities”, as at 31 March 2012, the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO recorded no
other interests or short positions in shares of the Company.

Note: These interests were disclosed by Lee Yu Chiang since 29
September 2003 and had been adjusted as a result of the
consolidation of shares in 2003. The percentage interest of Lee
Yu Chiang in the Company has been reduced due to subsequent
allotment of new shares of the Company.

BrahEFzE5Ea IFAEN  R2F—
“HFZA=t—HB AREAREEZFIPEGRIIE
3BHATHF2ERMT  WELHEEMALE
ARBZBI P EBEMERIAR -

Mz : ZRERBEDFREB_TT=FAA-_TAN
HARMEE 2R YER —TE=FRK
MAFETHE - FTHERARR ZERA
DHRAARRREREER RO TR -

FEEBRERAT
—E-CFFR
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, the Company repurchased its shares on the Stock
Exchange as follows:

BE > HEIEE LRSS

REER  ARBABZIABLEEROMOT

Number of
shares of Price per share
HK$0.10 each BRER Aggregate
Month repurchased Lowest Highest consideration
EEEmER
E{E0.10/8TTZ
B RHEE R1E &S EHRAE
HK$ HK$ HK$'000
BT BT TET
September 2011 3,410,000 0.096 0.117 353
—F——%NA
October 2011 2,340,000 0.096 0.102 229
—T—%+A
December 2011 3,780,000 0.100 0.102 382
—F——%+t=H
9,530,000 964

The above shares were cancelled upon repurchase and accordingly
the issued share capital of the Company was reduced by the nominal
value of these shares. The discount on repurchase was charged
against accumulated profits. An amount equivalent to the nominal
value of the shares cancelled was transferred from accumulated
profits to the capital redemption reserve.

None of the Company’s subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company'’s
Bye-laws although there are no restrictions against such rights
under the laws in Bermuda.

Starlight International Holdings Limited
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer
and five largest customers accounted for 37% and 72 % respectively
of the Group’s total turnover for the year.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier
and five largest suppliers accounted for 22% and 39% respectively
of the Group's total purchases for the year.

None of the directors, their associates, or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) has any interest in the Group’s five largest
customers and suppliers.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy regarding the employees of the Group is based
on their merit, qualifications and competence. The emoluments of
the directors are reviewed by the Remuneration Committee, having
regard to the Company’s operating results, individual performance
and comparable market statistics. No director or any of his associates,

and executive is involved in dealing with his own remuneration.

The Company has adopted share option schemes as an incentive
to directors and eligible employees. Details of the schemes are set
out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

ANNUAL CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received the annual confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive directors as required
under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considered all
independent non-executive directors to be independent.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company,
and within the knowledge of the directors, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float not less than 25% of Company’s
issued shares as required under the Listing Rules throughout the
year ended 31 March 2012.

FEEFHMER
AEERARAAREFZHERBH B ALEEF
BEEMEEAZT O N T2% o

AEBGARAAHERZBELEI AR EE
FREEHEEE22%M39% °

B EBMBEALTHEARR(BEZMAT AR
BS%ARBRA)VERNEBRARE P MEEET L
ERSA AR -

B B R

AEEREZHFMERTIENEBE ZRR - BER
EAME BEFZHMEHFMEESL2RAQFZ
HEXE  BANKRREAILTSBIBEMEE - BE
FAEEFHEFMBBALUARTRAEL2EETF
HA S HB -

ARBOHRM—EBRAETEEAYTEERAER
BT ZRE - Zet3FHBIREA MRS WE
31°

FEZBIRRE
RARREEREEESBIFPTESERE LMRAUE
BIBRBHFEBURRE - ARARRAES
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RERABBRE
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DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group made donations
amounting to HK$25,000.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events occurring after the reporting period are
set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the three years ended 31 March 2012
were audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. A resolution
will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Starlight International Holdings Limited

Lau Sak Hong, Philip
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong
26 June 2012
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB REE

Deloitte.
=E)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
STARLIGHT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Starlight
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 38
to 150, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2012, and the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

BiStarlight International Holdings Limited
(FHHEABEBRERDE)
(REFZEFMAKLZBRAF])

2ERR

AEBETE R BRI MR E38E150E A ME
BARAFA(RAR)RENEAR(GEN &%
BDHGARBERS  LEAHBEREREN-T
——f= A=+ AZRAMBRREE  RBE
ZELFEZHARERSE  BORNBHER
GARERER  URIBEHREMEREMR
REER -

EENGEMBREARENSR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBENREE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB REE

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March
2012, and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
26 June 2012
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

meazHERER

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE—T——FZA=1+—HILFE

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2012 2011
—EB—C—F =T —F
No‘ges HK$'000 HK$'000
Fff 52 FET FHT
Turnover BXE 5 631,830 637,633
Cost of sales SHE AR (571,348) (532,743)
Gross profit EF 60,482 104,890
Other income HA A 6 18,342 14,677
Distribution costs DA (139,213) (100,046)
Administrative expenses THEH (105,058) (115,413)
Other gains and losses H b s K B8 7 (62,919) (773)
Increase in fair value of investment L s
properties NEEEEM 13 54,346 61,381
Interest on borrowings wholly AR A FRNEH
repayable within five years EECZEEZFE (7,369) (8,081)
Share of (losses) profits of associates JE(G B N R (E18) @ Al (1,696) 291
Loss before taxation BR 7% Al &5 18 8 (183,085) (43,074)
Taxation IR 10 (10,434) (840)
Loss for the year REEEE (193,519) (43,914)
Other comprehensive income (expense) Hfts 2 E Y (Fx)
Exchange difference arising on BREBINETEEE
translation of foreign operations ZIEHEE (495) 288
Revaluation of leasehold properties BRI EYEREMN
for own use upon transfer to EBERZHEEME
investment properties \ 40,979 1,321
Deferred tax liability on revaluation R EICE YR
of leasehold properties for own EHEERZ
use upon transfer to investment HEMEEEZ
properties ELE%EIEE% (2,357) =
Reclassification of adjustment in At EERERE
respect of impairment of HEZ2EHNDHE
available-for-sale investments 82 -
Other comprehensive income REEZEMEAE Y
for the year 38,209 1,609
Total comprehensive expense AEEEEASBE
for the year (155,310) (42,305)
Loss for the year REEZEE
Attributable to: T’i‘]/\éﬁﬁﬁﬁ‘ :
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE7 PN (194,862) (41,216)
Non-controlling interests FEPE R 2 1,343 (2,698)
(193,519) (43,914)
Total comprehensive (expense) income $¢F£E(ﬁrﬁ§)ﬂﬁlfm
for the year e
Attributable to: Tﬁ‘]/\ifhf&l‘i
Owners of the Company ZiN/NEIEZ PN (156,621) (39,625)
Non-controlling interests JEE A% 2 1,311 (2,680)
(155,310) (42,305)
HK cents HK cents
AL P
Loss per share FREE 12
— Basic and diluted —EARREE (12.98) (3.18)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R a B AR R 3R

At 31 March 2012
RZE——F=A=+—H

2012 2011
—E——F —E——4F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B FET FHET
Non-current assets FERBEE
Investment properties BB 13 229,008 208,442
Property, plant and equipment ERN S 14 143,998 203,965
Prepaid lease payments BNRERE 15 3,532 3,653
Product development costs = m B RN 16 - -
Goodwill S 17 17,665 26,484
Interests in associates FE{L B & A Rl R aR 19 6,150 8,176
Available-for-sale investments AEHEZRE 20 9,400 24,040
Deferred tax assets RERIBEE 29 143 3,943
409,896 478,703
Current assets MEEE
Inventories rE 22 245,183 345,183
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEMBRTE « =& RIENFIE 23 86,387 184,138
Prepaid lease payments BNRERE 15 121 121
Amount due from an associate JE U B i/ =] BR TE 24 - 3,030
Taxation recoverable A e I8 - 37
Investments held for trading FIEBEBEZHRE 25 1,594 2,252
Financial assets designated at fair BEREATEETA
value through profit or loss BasoREE 21 18 20
Bank balances and cash BITREELRERS 26 90,989 69,168
424,292 603,949
Current liabilities TEARE
Creditors and accrued charges FEfTRRIA R 5T & 27 108,179 151,767
Amount due to an associate JE B & A R] BRIE 24 - 2,809
Derivative financial instruments TESBMTE 21 17 -
Taxation payable R IE 2,994 1,046
Borrowings BE 28 199,418 253,332
310,608 408,954
Net current assets mEEETE 113,684 194,995
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAE 523,580 673,698
Non-current liabilities FnBERE
Deferred tax liabilities EERERE 29 5,748 205
Net assets BE%E 517,832 673,493
FREERERAR 39
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BRHIK R R

At 31 March 2012
RZE——F=FA=+—H

2012 2011
—E—_F —E——4F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
M 5 FET FHET
Capital and reserves BN R (i

Share capital %N 30 149,571 150,524
Reserves (& 367,972 524,159

Equity attributable to owners AARIEAR AELER
of the Company 517,543 674,683
Non-controlling interests AR fE 289 (1,190)
Total equity BER 517,832 673,493

The consolidated financial statements on pages 38 to 150 were $38EZSF150EMEHVEAMBRE KR _Z
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 —=—&E A=+ ~AHREZRZERSETIE 1
June 2012 and are signed on its behalf by: AT ESRREES
285 E 285 H
Lau Sak Hong, Philip Lau Sak Kai, Anthony
CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
TEFEF LI EF
40 Starlight International Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN

G T

B

For The Year Ended 31 March 2012

HE-T—=

F=A=+—HIFE

EQUITY

Attributable to
Attributable to owners of the Company non-controlling interests
ANAREARS FERESEL
Share
Other Share o option
Investment  property Share Capital Acumulated net assets  reserve of
Share Share  Merger  Goodwill  Capital revaluation revaluation Translation ~ option ~ Warrant redemption  profits (iabilities) of ~~a listed
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  (losses)  Sub-total subsidiaries subsidiary  Sub-total Total
B -3LF
Ll P DYl
RE  HfthE BRE JREE EAEE gif BE(AR) ZHRE
BE  RBRE GHRE HERE  SARE  EMBR  BRRE AERR & i ] B EA(ER) gt B i it 3t
HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
T TEr TR fEr TR TEr TR TET TR TEr T TR AL TR TA TR TEr
At 1 April 2010 RZ2-24MA-A 314035 109,628 37,138 (3,688) = 82) 12635 9413 3,55 = 55,968 78395 616398 918 465 138 618381
Exchange difference arising on tranlation of  EHENEHEEZEHES
foreign operations - - - - - - - 270 - - - - 270 18 - 18 288
Revaluation of leasehold properties for own ~~ EAZHENZRELR
use upon transfer to investment properties (R ZEENE - - - - - -1 - - - - -1 - - -1
Loss for the year IEEER - B - B - - B - B - - (@1216)  (41218)  (2,698) - (2698)  (43914)
Total comprehensive income (expense TER2ENG(RR) 88
for the year - - - - - - 1321 270 - - - #1216)  (39625) (2,680 - (2680)  (42305)
314035 109,628 37,138 (3,688) - 82)  139% 9,683 3,556 - 55,968 31119 571313 (1,762) 465 (1,297) 576,076
Capital reorganisation (note 30) RAEA(F330) (235,527) - - - - BN - - - -
Issue of shares upon open offer (note 30) DREEREARAHE0) 62807 12562 - - - - - - - - - - 75369 - - - 75
Expenses in relaton to open offer BBLRBEIRY - - - - - - - - - - L) - - - )
Issue of warrants (note 32) BTRER(H3) - - - - - - - - - 1,550 - - 1,550 - = = 1,550
Issue of share upon exercise of share options T (E B RER TR 6209 5972 - - - - - - - - B PR - - - s
Isse o shares upon exercise of warrants ARERREARE 3000 7200 - - - - - - - (300) - - 990 - - -8
Capital contrbution from non-controling HERREERREE
shareholders of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - - - - 5 - 5 5
Deemed partial disposal of a subsidiary REALENBLANAER - - - - 50 - - - - - - - 50 (50) - (50) -
Recognition of equity-setted share-based A EERERA
payments FGrAES - - - - - - - - 1M - - -1 - % % 113
At 31 March 2011 RZF-——5=f=1-R 150,524 132,582 37138 (3,688) 50 (82) 13,956 9,683 4,5% 150 291495 31179 674,683 (1,753) 563 (1,190) 673,493
Eichange difference arsing on tranglation of - AE BN FHES 2EH 28
foreign operations - - - - - - - (463) - - - - (463) (32) - (32) (495)
Revaluation of leasehold properties for own ~ BAZRENZRER(E
use upon transfer to investment properties BRECEENE - - - - - - 409m - - - - - 40979 - - - 4097
Deferred tax iabilty on revaluation of ERTRENERENERRL
Jeasehold properties for own use upon REnEE: 2 ERREAR
transfer to investment properties - - - - - - (2357) - - - - - 3 - - - 3)
Reclassifcation of adjustment in respectof ~ AfHEREHETEL
impaiment of avallable-forsale investments ~ EH43 % - - - - - 8 - - - - - - 8 - - - 8
Loss for the year FEEER - - - - - - - - - - - (194.862)  (194,862) 138 - 1383 (193,519)
Total comprehensive income (expense) TEERENE(RR) 48
for the year - - - - - 8 38,622 (463) - - - (194.862) (156,621) 131 - 1311 (155,310)
150,524 132,582 37138 (3,688) 50 - 52,518 9,220 4,5% 1250 291,495  (157,683) 518,062 (442) 563 m 518183
Capita contrbution from non-controling WERRERREE
shareholders of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - - - - 59 - 59 59
Deemed partia disposal of a subsidiary REALENBL AN RS - - - - 3 - - - - - - - 35 (35) - (35) -
Derecogition of goodill reserve RIHEABRGRR - - - 3688 - - - - - - - (3688) - - - - -
Cancellationfforfeiture of share options 2 - - - - - - - - (100 - - 1,070 - - - - -
Cancellation of warrants by e M% - - - - - - - - - (1.250) - 1,250 - - - - -
Repurchase of shares BERA (953) - - - - - - - - - 953 (964) (964) - - - (964)
Recognition of equity-settled share-based BN EREEIRA
payments B PAGES - - - - - - - - 4o - - - Mo - 144 144 554
At 31 March 2012 R-§-2FZA=1-A 14957 132,582 37138 - 85 - 52,518 9,220 3,936 - 292448 (160,015 517,543 (418) 07 289 51782
FEBEBRERD & a1
SE-CFFR




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n‘/-.r\/\Iﬁrﬁ/)“:E%%

For the Year Ended 31 March 2012

E——F=A=1T—HIFE

2012 2011
—E-—F —FT——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Cash flows from operating activities EEEECREN
Loss before taxation BR 7 Al 518 (183,085) (43,074)
Adjustments for: THEE
Share of losses (profits) of associates FE(R = A Al R O ) 1,696 (291)
Release of prepaid lease payments BB ERIE 121 121
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BEREZETE
equipment 30,417 39,975
Impairment loss recognised in respect M WEMEBERERZ
of property, plant and equipment VERIEN SR 14,126 =
Impairment loss recognised in respect B ER 2R EEE
of goodwill 8,819 -
Impairment loss recognised in respect AHEERERRAL
of available-for-sale investments VEREY TE 14,722 6
Increase in fair value of REMEZ AN FEEEM
investment properties (54,346) (61,381)
Decrease in fair value of investments BIEEBEZHREZ
held for trading ANEEBERDS 467 129
Decrease (increase) in fair value of PTESMITAY
derivative financial instruments NEEER A (M) 9 (96)
Decrease in fair value of financial assets EERKBEATEMB A=
designated at fair value LERMEEZ
through profit or loss ATEEBERD 2 12
Dividend income from investments BIEEE 2R E 2 REWE
held for trading (30) (162)
Dividend income from available-for-sale AHBEZRE 2 KRB
investments (78) -
Share-based payments LARRAD 2 A-F 2 3K 554 1,138
Interest expense MEF X 7,369 8,081
Interest income A Bz (63) (81)
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEWE  BER
and equipment B PR (1,479) =
Gain on deregistration of an associate fk = Rl /N Wl i (270) =
Write-back of amount due to an associate FE S B = A B BR TE [ (2,809) =
Write-off of other receivables Ji1 5 EL b B WU IR 17,450 680
Allowance for obsolete and slow-moving PRE MBI 2 T B MH
inventories 18,000 5,890
Allowance for doubtful debts RIREE 7,221 1,161
Effect of foreign exchange rate change B A aERERE =
on inter-company balances BE) s 2 (423) (997)

Starlight International Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AEBHIMER

For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
HE-ZT——F=F=1—HIFE

2012 2011
—E-—F ===
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Operating cash flows before movements HEESFHRI 2
in working capital LEEAREN (121,610) (48,889)
Decrease (increase) in inventories FER A (Em) 82,000 (25,355)
Decrease (increase) in debtors, deposits JEWERTE « Z2 &
and prepayments TEfTFRIE R A (3 00) 73,080 (70,732)
Decrease in investments held for trading BEEB AR 191 11,496
Decrease (increase) in derivative financial PTESm T AR ()
instruments 8 (179)
Increase in financial assets designated at EEREBAFEESAER
fair value through profit or loss 2 & A E LN - (29)
(Decrease) increase in creditors and JENERTE K FEETE
accrued charges O A ) 180 (43,588) 6,988
Cash used in operations EEMACAS (9,919) (126,700)
Dividend received from investments held FIEEERAE ZREMam
for trading 30 162
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded ABENEHRME 37 240
Taxation in other jurisdictions paid Ha e ABFEE S H (1,636) (1,854)
Taxation in other jurisdictions refunded Hth AR B IR [0 136 —
Net cash used in operating activities REZEIFFTA 2 R F 5 (11,352) (128,152)
Cash flows from investing activities WEEEZBENR
Proceeds from disposal of an investment S IR B W3 TS SA
property 90,000 =
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEDE - BFEREE
and equipment Fr {5 I8 6,129 =
Repayment from (advance to) an associate B & N RIE R (A B2 A R BE) 3,030 (20)
Dividend received from an associate BB S N E RS 330 289
Repayment from an associate arising B s T A AR 2 Bk A BB K 270 =
from deregistration
Dividend received from available-for-sale Al HERE 2 IR E W=
investments 78 -
Interest received BB & 63 81
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYE - WERKE (4,467) (6,678)
Net cash from (used in) investing activities WEEBE(FTA)Z2ReF58 95,433 (6,328)
FEEBERAF 43
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AEBHIMER

For the Year Ended 31 March 2012
HE-ZT——F=ZF=1—HIFE

2012 2011
—E-—F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Cash flows from financing activities BEEE 2SR
Short term loans raised FrEE 7 EHER 8,000 =
Net proceeds from debt factoring loans B BT SRIE 55 7,301 1,084
Other loan raised s 2 HE K 1,000 35,300
Capital contribution from non-controlling B A R E IR AR T &
shareholders of a subsidiary 59 59
Net (repayment of) proceeds from trust BERBEBERADER KRG
receipts and import loans and loans BRERBERZER
related to bills discounted with recourse ER(EBR)MBRIBFHE (67,192) 71,257
Interest on bank and other borrowings paid BRI REMERF S (7,369) (8,081)
Repayment of short term loans EEEHER (3,023) (46,417)
Repurchase of shares EAEligr) (964) -
Proceeds from issue of shares upon NABERETRND
open offer FiS 778 - 75,369
Proceeds from issue of shares upon TR EREITRGD
exercise of share options FriS 5038 - 12,181
Proceeds from issue of shares upon 1T RARFE B TR (D
exercise of warrants FR8 7R - 9,900
Proceeds from issue of warrants BITRIREB TS RIE - 1,550
Repayment of bank loan BERITER - (27,281)
Expenses in relation to open offer EAAHAEEZRAX - (2,780)
Net cash (used in) from financing activities BMEEED(FA)MBZHEETE (62,188) 122,141
Net increase (decrease) in cash and RekBEEFEEBEBEZ
cash equivalents O ) FE 21,893 (12,339)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FUHekBEEEFEER
of the year 69,168 80,222
Effect of exchange difference ERERE I TE (72) 1,285
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year, FRE& RIS EEIEHE
representing bank balances and cash RERBFBITEGFERRE 90,989 69,168

Starlight International Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R R B T

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HE_T——F=A=1—HIFE

1. GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in
Bermuda with limited liability and its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate
information section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars which is the functional currency of the
Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. Its principal
subsidiaries are engaged in the design, manufacture and
sale of a wide range of electronic products and securities
trading.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and revised standards, amendments and interpretations (“new
and revised HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").

Amendments to HKFRSs Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2010
HKAS 24 (Revised 2009) Related party disclosures
Amendments to HK(IFRIC) Prepayments of a minimum funding
- INT 14 requirement
HK(IFRIC) = INT 19 Extinguishing financial liabilities with equity
instruments

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group's financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR RS

For the year ended 31 March 2012

HE—F—

ZFZA=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (CONT'D)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new or revised
standards, amendments and interpretation that have been
issued but are not yet effective.

ERAHMEREET 2BEBUE
BEEN(EEMBREE
1) (%)
BEMEMRERZFEREBT2ES
Bt 7% 35 45 #E )|

N5 B 37 S F2 A R AR T 51 2 AR 1B 1 R AR R
ZHIERGIEETER BT AR -

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 7
Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 32
HKAS 19 (Revised 2011)

HKAS 27 (Revised 2011)

HKAS 28 (Revised 2011)

HK(IFRIC) - INT 20

46

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2009 to 2011 cycle'

Disclosures - Transfers of financial assets?

Disclosures - Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities'

Mandatory effective date of HKFRS 9 and

transition disclosures®

Financial instruments?

Consolidated financial statements’

Joint arrangements'

Disclosure of interests in other entities'

Fair value measurement'

Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income*

Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities®

Employee benefits'

Separate financial statements'

Investments in associates and joint ventures'

Stripping costs in the production phase of

a surface mine'

Starlight International Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S B REME

For the year ended 31 March 2012

'.L|
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HE—F—

ZFZA=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONT’D)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(CONT’D)

1

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2013.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2011.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2015.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2012.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2014.

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 amended in 2010 includes the requirements for
the classification and measurement financial liabilities for
derecognition.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

HKFRS 9 requires all recognised financial assets that are
within the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement” to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost
at the end of subsequent accounting periods. All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair values at the end of subsequent reporting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make
an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not
held for trading) in other comprehensive income, with
only dividend income generally recognised in profit or
loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
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HE—F—

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONT'D)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (CONT'D)

The most significant effect of HKFRS 9 regarding the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities
relates to the presentation of changes in the fair
value of a financial liability (designated as at fair
value through profit or loss) attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability. Specifically, under
HKFRS 9, for financial liabilities that are designated
as at fair value through profit or loss, the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liability that
is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability is presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the
liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in
profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to
a financial liability’s credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the
entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as at fair value through
profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

The directors anticipate that HKFRS 13 will be adopted
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the

annual period beginning on 1 April 2015. Except for

available-for-sale investments, the directors anticipate that

the application of HKFRS 9 will not affect the classification

and measurement of the Group’s other financial assets and

liabilities based on the consolidated statement of financial

position of the Group as at 31 March 2012. Regarding the

Group’s available-for-sale investments, it is not practicable to

provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed

review has been completed.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONT'D)

HKFRS 13 “Fair value measurement”

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for
fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements. This standard defines fair value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value, and requires disclosures
about fair value measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is
broad; it applies to both financial instrument items and non-
financial instrument items for which other HKFRSs require or
permit fair value measurements and disclosures about fair
value measurements, except in specified circumstances. In
general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 13 are more
extensive than those in the current standards. For example,
guantitative and qualitative disclosures based on the three-
level fair value hierarchy currently required for financial
instruments only under HKFRS 7 “Financial instruments:
Disclosures” will be extended by HKFRS 13 to cover all assets
and liabilities within its scope.

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that HKFRS 13 will be adopted in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the annual
period beginning on 1 April 2013. Other than the available-
for-sale investments and investment properties carried at fair
value, the application of the new standard is not expected to
affect the measurement of the Group’s assets and liabilities
reported in the consolidated financial statements as at 31
March 2012 but will result in more extensive disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements.

R REET 2 BRI
HEA(EBUNBHREE
)

]
EAHBREERE13R AT EEN R

ERVBREERNF13RELABAFE
BfERBEBEAFEEFEEANZE I
5« ZEAFRERAFEE  BILFFERFE
BEZER  AEHEBEAFEEFEZRE
RE - BRMBREENFEBRBER
B ERAREMFEEVBREENRENRA
ARFEEAERREATEEFEENZ
TRTABERNFEMTAER  ERER
RSN BEME - BAMBHREERNSF
BRAHZBEERERRTEAARESE
FREME - fIN - REERREBHBRE
ERE7TRIMTA : HE IR TA
Z=ERFEEERZELCREEREEH
AT M BEREENFIIRGUNER
NRERBENZAEEERAE -

&
£
A

-
2
—

EEVBREENFBRENR T —=F
—A—BgzERRcFERRER(AR
RIER) °

E=RY EAEVBBRSENFIIRHEN
AEEE T =FHA-BRHBZFEN
B2 BERETRR - FRAHBERE
&E@?FEW%Z&%%%%*E%%%
S ER T EZEAEEANR _FT——F=H
=t —HZ&EE ﬁﬁ%#&%ﬁﬁzﬁé%&%%
ZETE - BERSHEAVMBHRERBEEAEE
ZEH -

FEEIR AR A

—z——gay |42




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S B REM

For the year ended 31 March 2012

'.L|
N

HE—F—

ZFE=ZA=1+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONT'D)

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of items of other

comprehensive income”

The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to present profit
or loss and other comprehensive income in either a single
statement or in two separate but consecutive statements.
However, the amendments to HKAS 1 require additional
disclosures to be made in the other comprehensive income
section such that items of other comprehensive income
are grouped into two categories: (a) items that will not
be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (b) items
that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when
specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the
same basis.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for the Group's
consolidated financial statements for the annual period
beginning on 1 April 2013. The presentation of items of
other comprehensive income will be modified accordingly
when the amendments are applied in the future accounting
periods.

Other than those disclosed above, the directors of the
Company anticipate that the application of the other new
and revised standards, amendments or interpretation will
have no material impact on the results and financial position
of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR RS MR

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HE-ZT——F=F=1—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESITEE

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain properties and
financial instruments that are measured at revalued amounts
or fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where
the Company has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from
its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition
or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Basis of consolidation (CONT'D)

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-
controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance effective from
1 April 2010 onwards.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisition prior to 1 April 2001 continues
to be held in reserves, and will be charged to accumulated
profits/losses at the time when the business to which the
goodwill relates is disposed of or when a cash-generating
unit to which the goodwill relates becomes impaired.

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business on or after
1 April 2001 is carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses, if any, and is presented separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Goodwill (CONT’D)

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that financial year. When
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less
than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss
is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets of
the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the

amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a
joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Investments in associates (CONT'D)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, investments in associates are initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associates. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in that associate (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group’'s net investment in the associate), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the associate recognised at the date
of acquisition is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Investments in associates (CONT'D)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets” as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use
and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associate that are not
related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods are
delivered and title has been passed.

Commission income is recognised when services are

rendered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Revenue recognition (CONT'D)

Interest income from a financial asset excluding financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at
the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments excluding financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss is recognised when the
Group’s right to receive payment has been established.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land (classified as
finance leases) and buildings held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost or fair value less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Advantage has been taken of the transitional relief provided by
paragraph 80A of HKAS 16 “Property, plant and equipment”
from the requirement to make regular revaluation of the
Group’s land and buildings which had been carried at revalued
amounts prior to 30 September 1995, and accordingly no
further revaluation of land and buildings is carried out. Prior
to 30 September 1995, the revaluation increase arising on
the revaluation of these assets was credited to the other
property revaluation reserve. Any future decreases in value
of these assets will be dealt with as an expense to the extent
that they exceed the balance, if any, on the other property
revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of
the same asset. On the subsequent sale or retirement of
a revalued asset, the corresponding revaluation surplus is
transferred to accumulated profits/losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Property, plant and equipment (CONT'D)

The cost or valuation of leasehold properties is depreciated on
a straight line basis after taking into account of the estimated
residual value. Depreciation is recognised so as to write off
the cost of items of property, plant and equipment other
than leasehold properties over their estimated useful lives
using the reducing balance method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of the reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured at
cost (or deemed cost for properties transferred from property,
plant and equipment), including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at their fair values using the fair
value model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of investment property are included in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use or no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the item
is derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Investment properties (CONT'D)

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed as evidenced
by end of owner-occupation, any difference between the
carrying amount and the fair value of that item at the date
of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in other property revaluation reserve. On
the subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the relevant
revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to accumulated
profits/losses.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the
three categories, including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-
for-sale financial assets. The classification depends on the
nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined
at the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
HE-ZT——F=F=1—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Financial instruments (CONT’'D)

Financial assets (CONT'D)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to
the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets classified as at
fair value through profit or loss, of which interest income
is excluded in net gains or losses.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss has two
subcategories including financial assets held for trading
and those designated at fair value through profit or loss
on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

o it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has
a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking;

or

3 it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012

HE—T—

ZFE=ZA=1+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Financial instruments (CONT’'D)

Financial assets (CONT'D)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(CONT'D)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading
may be designated as at fair value through profit or loss
upon initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would

otherwise arise; or

o the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that
basis; or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated
as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value, with changes in fair value arising
from remeasurement recognised directly in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend earned
on the financial assets.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
HE-ZT——F=F=1—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Financial instruments (CONT’'D)

Financial assets (CONT'D)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including debtors, deposits, amount due
from an associate and bank balances and cash) are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on

impairment loss on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables or
held-to-maturity investments.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at
cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of the
reporting period (see accounting policy on impairment loss

on financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit
or loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end
of the reporting period. Financial assets are considered to
be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash
flows of the financial assets have been affected.

TESHBR(E)

SRMIE(E)

ERMEEE)

B R ENE
ERFERFRRLEBNERTISRERLE
B RFEMNRZIFTESREE - RYF
ERE  ERRERFA(REBREER
Be  BWEERARRBRRTETRR
) A B R ) 30K 9% 6 5 AN R E T E R
HEBBRAKRRTXEREREERER
BZEFEE) -

AR EEHEE
AHHESREEREERILBRHLED
BREATEEFABREZEREE BEX
MEWFESFEINRAAZREZIFNTET
Ao

I A BT IS ME R E A EEEATE
AFEZAHHEERARE - DTR\EHMK
BRARERNE BB EBEFE(RTX
FREREEREBRZERR) -

EHEERE
CREE(REZATEEAABEZEHME
EINRNBmEMEREFEREE B RED
R HETEERETS  &REE MR
KRAERERANN I ERAZEREEREE
M—EXZEEHAMIITER  SRE
ERQAHIRE

FEEBRERAR

—g-——xgg | O




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
nﬂ‘EJ/ZTﬁ&¥¥&£t;Mﬁ

For the year ended 31 March 2012
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Financial instruments (CONT’'D)

Financial assets (CONT'D)
Impairment of financial assets (CONT'D)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade debtors,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually
are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a collective
basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period
ranging from 30 days to 90 days and observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss is recognised as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment
loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)
Financial instruments (CONT'D)

Financial assets (CONT'D)
Impairment of financial assets (CONT'D)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade debtors, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss. When a trade debtor is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss in the period in which the impairment takes place.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of
the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the group entities after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the group
entities are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012

HE—F—

ZFE=ZA=1+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Financial instruments (CONT’'D)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (CONT'D)
Equity instruments (CONT’'D)

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including creditors, amount due to an
associate and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments that do not qualify for
hedge accounting

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are initially
recognised at fair value at the date a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair
value at the end of the reporting period. The resulting gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
HE-ZT——F=F=1—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Financial instruments (CONT’'D)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset
to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises
an associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised
in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date
is recognised as an expense in full at the grant date when
the share options granted vest immediately or expensed
on a straight line basis over the vesting period if the share
options is not vested immediately, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share option reserve).

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in the share option reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in the
share option reserve will be transferred to accumulated
profits/losses.

Share options granted to advisors

Share options issued in exchange for services are measured
at the fair values of the services received, unless that fair
value cannot be reliably measured, in which case the services
received are measured by reference to the fair value of the
share options granted. The fair values of the services received
are recognised as expenses, with a corresponding increase
in equity (share option reserve), when the counterparties
render services, unless the services qualify for recognition
as assets.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012

HE—F—

ZFZA=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of
an internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

3 the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

3 the intention to complete the intangible asset and
use or sell it;

3 the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

o how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

o the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the intangible asset; and

3 the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from
the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition
criteria listed above. Where no internally-generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure is charged
to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

The resultant asset is amortised on a straight line basis over
its useful life and carried at cost less subsequent accumulated

amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012

HE—T—

ZFE=ZA=1+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted-average method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated costs to completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.

Impairment (other than goodwill)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
HE-ZT——F=F=1+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Impairment (other than goodwill) (CONT'D)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as an income
immediately.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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ZFZA=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Taxation (CONT'D)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012

HE—F—

ZFZA=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Taxation (CONT’'D)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities and
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model in accordance with HKAS
40 "Investment property”, the carrying amounts of such
properties are presumed to be recovered through sale, unless
the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and is held within
a business model of Group whose business objective is to
consume substantively all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment property over time, rather than through
sale. If the presumption is rebutted, deferred tax liabilities
and deferred tax assets for such investment properties are
measured in accordance with the above general principles
set out in HKAS 12 (i.e. based on the expected manner as

to how the properties will be recovered).
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
HE-ZT——F=ZF=1—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on
a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received or receivable as an incentive to enter into
an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental
expense over the lease term on a straight line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments)
are allocated between the land and the building elements
in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold
interests in the land element and building element of the
lease at the inception of the lease.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
HE-ZT——F=F=1+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Leases (CONT’'D)

Leasehold land and building (CONT'D)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease term on a straight line basis
except for those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model. When
the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and building elements, the entire lease is generally
classified as a finance lease and accounted for as property,
plant and equipment, unless it is clear that both elements are
operating leases, in which case the entire lease is classified
as an operating lease.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
HE-ZT——F=F=1—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in
the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not re-translated.
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Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary HEEBIHE RBREEEIEE FAEAE N =
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised %E REEHAEfE B s R

in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial MEFRGEMBREMS @ AEBERGINZE
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign %ZQE‘E&E\E IR A HI R R 2 R PE R A
operations are translated into the presentation currency of EAASEZFHEB(AEIL) r MABK
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange TIRFERNFHERBE  KRIFEHAERKIE

prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for
the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests
as appropriate).

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans
are charged as expenses when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.
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#HE=

4.

T——F=A=1—HIFE

KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

Allowances for inventories

The management of the Group reviews the physical conditions
and saleability of inventories at the end of the reporting
period, and makes allowance for obsolete and slow-moving
inventory items identified that are no longer suitable for use
in production. The management estimates the net realisable
value for such finished goods and consumables based primarily
on the latest invoice prices and current market conditions.
As at 31 March 2012, the carrying amount of inventories is
HK$245,183,000 (2011: HK$345,183,000), net of allowance
for obsolete and slow-moving inventories of HK$53,441,000
(2011: HK$46,021,000).
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HE—F—

4.

ZFE=ZA=1+—HIFE

KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONT’D)

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating units and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where the actual cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 March 2012,
the carrying amount of goodwill is HK$17,665,000 (2011:
HK$26,484,000), net of accumulated impairment loss of
HK$10,388,000 (2011: HK$1,569,000). Details of the
recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note 18.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group assesses annually whether property, plant and
equipment have any indication of impairment, in accordance
with the relevant accounting policies. The recoverable amounts
of property, plant and equipment have been determined
based on value in use calculations. These calculations and
valuations require the use of judgment and estimates on
future operating cash flows and discount rates adopted.
Where the actual cash flows are different from the original
estimate, a material change in the amount of impairment
may arise. As at 31 March 2012, the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment is HK$143,998,000 (2011:
HK$203,965,000), net of impairment loss of HK$14,126,000
(2011: nil). Details of the recoverable amount calculation
are set out in note 14.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012

HE—F—

4.

ZFZA=+—HILFE

KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONT’D)

Income taxes

As at 31 March 2012, no deferred tax asset was recognised
in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position in
relation to the estimated unused tax losses of HK$551,456,000
(2011: HK$377,472,000) due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. The realisability of the deferred tax
asset mainly depends on whether sufficient future profits or
taxable temporary differences will be available in the future.
In cases where the actual future taxable profits generated
are more or less than expected, a material recognition or
reversal of deferred tax asset may arise, which would be
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which such a
recognition or reversal takes place.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker, for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of goods or services delivered
or provided by each operating division.

The Group is organised into two operating divisions,
namely design, manufacture and sale of electronic products
(representing consumer electronic audio and video equipment,
imaging products, musical instruments and accessories) and
securities trading. These divisions are the basis on which the
Group reports its segment information.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
HE-F——F=A=+—HILFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D) 5. TEER(E)
Segment revenue and results DEWBBAREE
An analysis of the Group’s revenue, which represents sales BEAEER HFLELEHDBZBRA(RBEESR
of goods, and results by reportable and operating segments U A REE ST -
is as follows:
Design,
manufacture
and sale of
electronic Securities
products trading Consolidated
ETEM
Rt~ BlE
REE HHEE =1
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TERT TET
Year ended 31 March 2012 BE-_Z—_—F
ZA=1+T—HLEEE
TURNOVER = 3 631,830 - 631,830
SEGMENT RESULTS DEDELE (213,732) (448) (214,180)
Interest income F B W= 63
Unallocated income FOvaN & 9,795
Unallocated expenses R BLRIZ (24,044)
Increase in fair value of investment properties & ¥ % 2 A FEE LN 54,346
Share of losses of associates JE{GES N A &8 (1,696)
Interest on borrowings wholly AR AFRNEBEER
repayable within five years ZEEZFE (7,369)
Loss before taxation BRELRIEE (183,085)
78 Starlight International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2012




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e W ERE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2012

#HE=

5.

T——FZA=t+—HULFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D)

TEER(E

Segment revenue and results (CONT'D) PEBMAREE(E)
Design,
manufacture
and sale of
electronic Securities
products trading Consolidated
BTEM
A BUE
RIEE EREE &&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET TET
Year ended 31 March 2011 BE-Z——F
ZA=+—HLEE
TURNOVER B 637,633 - 637,633
SEGMENT RESULTS DERELE (90,885) 117 (90,768)
Interest income A2 e 81
Unallocated income Koz 4,858
Unallocated expenses RO (10,836)
Increase in fair value of investment properties % &% 2 A FEE N 61,381
Share of profits of associates JE (R Bt = 1 ) g ) 291
Interest on borrowings wholly ARAFABEEER
repayable within five years ZBEZFE (8,081)
Loss before taxation FREL A& 1B (43,074)

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in note 3. Segment results represent the results
from each operating segment without allocation of central
administration costs incurred by head office, increase in fair
value of investment properties, share of results of associates,
gain on deregistration of an associate, write-back of amount
due to an associate, interest income, dividend income from
available-for-sale investments, impairment loss recognised
in respect of available-for-sale investments, rental income
and finance costs. This is the measure reported to the chief
operating decision maker for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.
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HE—F—

ZFZA=+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT'D)

Segment assets and liabilities

An analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by reportable

TEER(E)
FBEAERAMK

BARETRREENH2EERAEST

and operating segments is as follows: s
Design,
manufacture
and sale of
electronic Securities
products trading Consolidated
EfER
Rt~ ®iE
RiHE HHEE a5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET
At 31 March 2012 R=ZZB—=F
=RA=+—H
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DEEE 494,817 3,681 498,498
Unallocated corporate assets RO ARIEE 335,690
Consolidated total assets BETREE 834,188
LIABILITIES afE
Segment liabilities HEEE 108,179 17 108,196
Unallocated corporate liabilities RAORAFAE 208,160
Consolidated total liabilities BETRAE 316,356
At 31 March 2011 R=B——%F
=A=+—8
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DEEE 758,126 7,690 765,816
Unallocated corporate assets RO ARIEE 316,836
Consolidated total assets BFTREE 1,082,652
LIABILITIES afE
Segment liabilities HEEE 151,767 - 151,767
Unallocated corporate liabilities RAORAFAE 257,392
Consolidated total liabilities BETRBE 409,159
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HE—F—

ZFZA=+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D)
Segment assets and liabilities (CONT'D)

Unallocated corporate assets mainly represent investment

properties, interests in associates,

available-for-sale

investments, deferred tax assets, amount due from an associate,

taxation recoverable and bank balances and cash.

Unallocated corporate liabilities mainly represent borrowings,

amount due to an associate, taxation payable and deferred

tax liabilities.

TEER(E)

THEEREEE)
ANEAREETZERAEME - BIEKZ

’/}D%

CAHHEZRE BEREER

= BUEE ARIRRIA - AT E IR R ARTT

AORATBEIEEREE  BHBEQF
FRIE - ENMREREERESE

Other segment information Hit o &R
Design,
manufacture
and sale of
electronic Securities
products trading  Consolidated
EfER
&t~ HiE
REHE HHEE a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FEx FEx
Amounts included in the measurement MADHEEI ST
of segment results or segment assets: BEFNEZHE
Year ended 31 March 2012 BE-Z--%
ZA=t-ALEE
Additions of property, plant and equipment EENE  BERZE 4,467 - 4,467
Decrease in fair value of derivative fTHEeMIAY
financial instruments ATEERD - 9 9
Decrease in fair value of financial assets EEARATEEFA
designated at fair value through BaemEEY
profit or loss ATEERD - 2 2
Decrease in fair value of investments %1’EEEZT§§Z
held for trading AEEERD - 467 467
Release of prepaid lease payments BABERERD 121 - 121
Depreciation of property, plant and nE - BERIETE
equipment 30,417 - 30,417
Allowance for doubtful debts RERE 7,221 - 7,221
Allowance for obsolete and slow-moving RERFH FERE
inventories 18,000 - 18,000
Impairment loss recognised in respect of HEERZRERE
goodwill 8,819 - 8,819
Impairment loss recognised in respect of ME - BERZERER
property, plant and equipment R {EEE 14,126 - 14,126
Write-off of other receivables H it JE UK RIS 17,450 - 17,450
Ft R B FR S BR A F] 81
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For the year ended 31 March 2012

BE_T——F=A=+—HIFE
5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT'D) 5. 2EERE
Other segment information (CONT'D) HibpEER (&)
Design,
manufacture
and sale of
electronic Securities
products trading ~ Consolidated
B TFEMm
RET - BlE
RIHE BHEBEE =
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBIL FHBT T
Amounts included in the measurement MADHEEL ST
of segment results or segment assets: BEEZFE
Year ended 31 March 2011 BE-2—-%
ZSA=t-HLEE
Additions of property, plant and equipment EENE  BERIE 6,678 = 6,678
Increase in fair value of derivative fTESMIAL
financial instruments DNEEELEMN - (96) (96)
Decrease in fair value of financial assets BEABRATEETA
designated at fair value through profit BR/eREEL
or loss AFEERD - 12 12
Decrease in fair value of investments FEEEZHREL
held for trading ATEERD - 129 129
Release of prepaid lease payments BAEEFERR 121 = 121
Depreciation of property, plant and ER
equipment REHE 39,975 - 39,975
Allowance for doubtful debts RERE 1,161 - 1,161
Allowance for obsolete and slow-moving RERBH L GERE
inventories 5,890 - 5,890
Write-off of other receivables H i fE Uk TR IB 680 = 630
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
HE_T——F=A=1—HIFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT'D) 5.

Other segment information (CONT'D)

Amounts regularly provided to the chief operating decision

maker but not included in the measurement of segment

results or segment assets:

TREER ()
Rt EER(H)

EHEBRTIELERREBRAADIE
BN EEEFEZKBWT ¢

2012 2011

—EB—CF —E2——F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

Investment properties wEY 229,008 208,442

Interests in associates P B N B M A 6,150 8,176
Share of (losses) profits JE (R Bt 2 X ) (548 ) )i A

of associates (1,696) 291
Increase in fair value of KEMEZ AT EEEM

investment properties 54,346 61,381

Interest expense FEMXZ 7,369 8,081

Geographical segments

The Group's operations are located in North America, Europe,

Hong Kong (place of domicile), Mainland China (the “PRC")

and other countries.

HEDE

AEBZEBHOMRIEM - BN - A
(BEHE)  PERRE(HE]) REAM
B e

FEEIR AR A

—z-——grm | 83
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For the year ended 31 March 2012

HE-_T——F=A=1+—HILFE
5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D) 5. HWERE)
Geographical segments (CONT'D) WEDE(E)
The Group’s revenue from external customers (based on REBREBIIFIEZE ZWAREEFREM
location of customers) and information about its non-current BIREMBEFERBEE(REEMEIME)
assets by geographical location of the assets are detailed ZEEBHR
below:
Revenue from
external customers Non-current
Year ended 31 March assets (note)
REMBEEZBA
HE=A=T—HLLEFE FREBEE ()
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-—F —E——F —E--F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAET FHET FAERT FET
United States of America EJE 448,177 515,876 2,987 3,523
Canada JIEVN 116,044 50,072 - -
Europe B 36,585 51,072 - -
The PRC H 82 - 137,544 143,575
Hong Kong B 10,445 9,704 259,822 303,622
Other countries H fth B 5K 20,497 10,909 - =
631,830 637,633 400,353 450,720
Note: Non-current assets excluded available-for-sale investments sk : ERBDEETBREAHEEZKRER
and deferred tax assets. EERIAEE ©
Information about major customers EBXTEREFZEHR
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years FRFELMAEBEBALIEIONALZE
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group P AEFS T :
are as follows:
2012 2011
=F-=F —T——F
HK$000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Customer A' HEA 236,667 157,738
Customer B! = B! 109,379 168,782
L Revenue from sales of electronic products. RKEHEETEMZWA -
84 Starlight International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2012




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R B T

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HE_T——F=A=1—HIFE

6. OTHER INCOME 6. HftlgA
2012 2011
—B-CF —2——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHBIT
Other income mainly includes: HMRAEZBIE
Commission ik 122 267
Dividend income from AfEEZRE 2Kk E KR
available-for-sales investments 78 -
Dividend income from ETRAE S 2R E s
listed equity securities 30 162
Interest income 2 as 63 81
Rental income (note) & e (FEE) 6,638 4,858
Sale of scrap materials FERH & U a 5,371 454
Write-back of accrued charges FEET & R #E - 4,306
Note: Outgoings of HK$56,000 (2011: HK$29,000) were Bzt : 56,0008 ;L ( == — — 4 : 29,000

incurred resulting in net rental income of HK$6,582,000

(2011: HK$4,829,000).

BT ) B e U E FRE6,582,00008
TT(=ZZ——4% : 4,829,000/ T)FF
EEZRAY -

FEEIRERA

—z-——grm | S
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE—T——FZA=1+—HILFE

7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7. HttWEREE
2012 2011
—EB-—CF —T——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FABT
Other gains and losses comprise: Hh Yz R B E R E
Allowance for doubtful debts RERE AR (7,221) (1,161)
(Decrease) increase in fair value PTESMITAZAFERE
of derivative financial Om ) # N
instruments (9) 96
Decrease in fair value of BEREREAFEETAER
financial assets designated at ZemEELATFEBERD
fair value through profit or loss (2) (12)
Decrease in fair value of FEEEZREZATEBARD
investments held for trading (467) (129)
Exchange (loss) gain, net M (EHE) W - F5 (4,661) i, 11
Gain on deregistration of il kN Al
an associate 270 -
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE  BERE#H 2 B
plant and equipment 1,479 -
Impairment loss recognised in A E 2R ERR R EER
respect of available-for-sale
investments (14,722) (6)
Impairment loss recognised in P ERR ZREEE
respect of goodwill (8,819) -
Impairment loss recognised in M WE KRR ERERZREEE
respect of property,
plant and equipment (14,126) -
Write-back of amount due JE < Bt = A R BRIB 5[]
to an associate 2,809 -
Write-off of other receivables E 8 IR IR M 8E (17,450) (680)
(62,919) (773)
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
HE_T——F=A=1—HIFE

8. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 8. KRBAIEIER

2012 2011
—E-C—F —ET——%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT

Loss before taxation has been PR AT E1E 2 5T E B kR -

arrived at after charging:
Allowance for obsolete and PRE KRB 2T ERE

slow-moving inventories (FEASHEKAR)

(included in cost of sales) 18,000 5,890
Auditors’ remuneration 2% B Bl & 3,395 3,351
Depreciation of property, M - HWEREETE

plant and equipment 30,417 39,975
Minimum lease payments RAR B A Y R E RN

under operating leases in respect Z x(EHE

of rented premises 9,635 9,033
Release of prepaid lease payments TE T &R IE R 121 121
Research and development i 9 K2 A 3 A AR (Bt = (a))

costs (note (a)) 22,899 29,050
Share-based payments for AT —ALEERE 2 LARSAD S5 2 AN 3R

an advisor 41 212
Staff costs including directors’ BTIRA  BIEEEME (HEDb))

remuneration (note (b)) 76,698 94,305
Notes: Bt 5
(@) The research and development costs included staff costs (a) ME RFEBERKANBSIEE RN

of HK$4,290,000 (2011: HK$5,628,000). 4,290,000/ 7T (=& ——%F : 5,628,000
HIT) °
(b) The staff costs for the year included retirement (b) AFEZEIRABIERKERG

benefits scheme contributions of HK$4,529,000 (2011:
HK$4,788,000) and share-based payments of HK$513,000
(2011: HK$926,000).

2l it 34,529,000% T( =T — —
F : 4,788,000/ 70 ) R AR (5 = 1+
2 fF3k513,0008 (=T ——F :
926,000 L) °

FEEIR AR A

—z——grm | 8/
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For the year ended 31 March 2012

HE—F—

ZFZA=+—HILFE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 9. ESKEEMS
EMOLUMENTS
Details of emoluments paid by the Group to each of the AEERNISESZ2MEFBWOT
directors are as follows:
For the year ended 31 March 2012 BE-ZE——F=A=+—HLEE
Salaries
and other Retirement
short term benefits
employee scheme Total
Fees benefits contributions emoluments
ek
Hfth 2 5 RIKER
we BERF sTEIfERR [T E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FTAET FTERT FTERT
Executive directors: HITES
Lau Sak Hong, Philip 2R - 3,754 12 3,766
Lau Sak Kai, Anthony 2|8 - 726 12 738
Lau Sak Yuk, Andy 21858 - 591 12 603
Lau Chu Lan, Carol 2RE - 607 12 619
Non-executive director: FHITES
Hon Sheung Tin, Peter e 50 - - 50
Independent non-executive BMIEHTEE :
directors:
Ho Hau Chong, Norman o] 2 4 50 - - 50
Chan Chak Chung PR 50 - - 50
Chuck Winston Calptor 258 50 - - 50
200 5,678 48 5,926
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
HE_T——F=A=1—HIFE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 9. EBEREEME(E)
EMOLUMENTS (CONT’'D)
For the year ended 31 March 2011 HE_Z——F=ZA=+—BLL&FE
Salaries
and other Retirement
short term benefits
employee scheme Total
Fees benefits contributions emoluments
Hek
H 55 5 RIKEA
e EE &7 AR Memsm
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET TR FHT
Executive directors: HITES
Lau Sak Hong, Philip 285 5= - 5,000 12 5,012
Lau Sak Kai, Anthony 2555 - 850 12 862
Lau Sak Yuk, Andy 21858 - 715 12 727
Lau Chu Lan, Carol (note) 212 (Mizk) - 449 8 457
Non-executive director: FHITESE :
Hon Sheung Tin, Peter EiEHE 50 - - 50

Independent non-executive BIIHITES :

directors:

Ho Hau Chong, Norman 7] [E 58 50 = = 50
Chan Chak Chung PR =2 {rh 50 - - 50
Chuck Winston Calptor 2EE 50 - - 50

200 7,014 44 7,258
Note: Appointed on 23 July 2010. e RZZE—TFELA-FT=HEZEE -
No performance related incentive payments were paid to HE_T——_F=A=+—HIMEFEE
the directors of the Company for each of the two years F - BEAARQRES N EAES R
ended 31 March 2012. e
During the year ended 31 March 2012, two (2011: two) HEZZT——F=A=1+—"HIFE Mm%
directors waived emoluments of HK$164,000 (2011: R WR)EFWEMSE164,000
HK$182,000). BIL(ZZF——%F : 182,000/ 7T) ©

Ft R B FR S BR A &)
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For the year ended 31 March 2012

HE—F—

—FZA=+—HILFE

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 9.
EMOLUMENTS (CONT'D)

Employees

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included three
(2011: three) directors, details of whose remuneration are
set out above. The emoluments of the remaining two (2011:
two) highest paid employees are as follows:

EEkEEME(E)

&8

ARBEEBEHMZALBE=A(=F
——F ZR)EF AHREML 2R
BREXBE  HBME(ZB——F: W
2)BEHHERZMEMT ¢

2012 2011
—E-—fF —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T

Salaries and other short term FehEtEHESER
employee benefits 1,845 2,230

Retirement benefits scheme RIREFIFT B3k

contributions 9 12
1,854 2,242

Emoluments of these employees were within the following
bands:

HEREME 2 SEBEWT :

Number of employees

EEA™
2012 2011
—E-—F —E——4F
HK$500,001 — HK$ 1,000,000 500,001%7C — 1,000,000/%& 7T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001%87C — 1,500,000/& 7T 1 1
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
HE_T——F=A=1—HIFE

10. TAXATION 10. BiE
2012 2011
—ZT-—F —E——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
The charge (credit) comprises: M M (Fe) B
Hong Kong Profits Tax HBNEH
Current year REE - -
Under(over)provision in prior years MAFE IR () BE 1,773 (23)
1,773 (23)
Taxation in other jurisdictions Hth BlER 2 Fi 18
Current year REE 1,660 1,514
Underprovision in prior years WA FE DIRERS 15 45
1,675 1,559
Deferred taxation (note 29) RIERIE (M3529) 6,986 (696)
10,434 840

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2011: 16.5%)
of the estimated assessable profit for the year.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the

rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

EBFNERAREE 2 (H5HFEFRR 8 IR
K16.5%(=F——F : 16.5%):T& -

REMBDERELS 2 RIBIIRER RDER 2

BT -

FEEIR AR A
—E-CFFH
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For the year ended 31 March 2012

HE—F—

10.

ZFZA=+—HILFE

TAXATION (CONT'D)

Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the loss before
taxation per the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income as follows:

10. BIE(E)
KEEHIEREA
BEERNT ¢

2 TH W as 3R AT R BR B A8

2012 2011
—E—CfF —E——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHBIT
Loss before taxation R TR & 1B (183,085) (43,074)
Tax credit at the domestic BRAHPIEHNE16.5%
income tax rate of 16.5% (ZF—%F :16.5%)
(2011: 16.5%) STEZHIBESR (30,209) (7,107)
Tax effect of share of results EREt 2 ARIFRCHIERE
of associates 280 (48)
Tax effect of expenses not NAIHIMERA 2 HIBEEE
deductible for taxation purposes 14,822 4,310
Tax effect of income not ARG E 2 HIBZE
taxable for taxation purposes (9,852) (10,159)
Effect of different tax rates READ EE R L& X
of subsidiaries operating in ZHB AR TR Rz 2
other jurisdictions 236 10
Tax effect of tax losses RERTFEE 2 RIBELE
not recognised 30,586 15,246
Tax effect of utilisation of tax AL ARER 2 MEEE
losses previously not recognised 2B (114) (2,265)
Underprovision in prior years BEFERER 1,788 22
Others HAth 2,897 831
Taxation for the year REFZHIE 10,434 840

92

Annual Report 2012

Starlight International Holdings Limited



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e W ERE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HE_T——F=A=1—HIFE

11. DIVIDENDS 11. KE
The directors have resolved not to recommend a dividend EEBATEZEEHE_ZT——F=A=
for the year ended 31 March 2012 (2011: nil). T—HLEEEZRE(ZT——F  #) -
12. LOSS PER SHARE 12. BREE
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share is FREREESERBIBEATERSGE

based on the following data:

2012 2011
—ZT-CF —T——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT
Loss attributable to owners RETEERER REEES
of the Company for the ZARRNEIEE ANEGEE
purpose of basic and diluted
loss per share (194,862) (41,216)
Number of shares
RHEE
2012 2011
—ZT-CF —T——fF
Weighted average number of RETEEBREARREEES
shares for the purpose ZINFEF RN EE
of basic and diluted loss per share 1,501,255,115 1,295,292,468
The calculation of diluted loss per share does not assume the STE SR SRR T RERWEITE HARTT
exercise of the outstanding share options as it would result F2BERE TERERTEBSESIMESFE
in a decrease in the loss per share for both years and the ZEBREBRS  BZESEREZTEES
exercise prices of those options are higher than the average & 2 FHETE -
market price for shares for both years.
Ft R B FR S BR A &)
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
HE-_T——F=A=+—HILEE

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 13. REYZF
2012 2011
—E-——F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHBIT
Fair value of investment properties: wEMHEZ ANTFERE :
At beginning of the year REAT] 208,442 145,350
Transfer from leasehold EEREAYE  BEREZHEET
properties under property, ZHEMZE
plant and equipment 56,220 1,711
Increase in fair value RNEEBEEM 54,346 61,381
Disposals HE (90,000) =
At end of the year REH#R 229,008 208,442
The carrying amount of REVHXEEESRE
investment properties comprises IRATHNELFE 2
properties situated on Tz W
land held under:
Land in Hong Kong: REBZ T :
Long leases REIME A 192,300 190,800
Land outside Hong Kong: REBZINZ L
Long leases REIME A 18,228 17,642
Medium term leases FRERFR A0 18,480 -
229,008 208,442
The fair values of the Group’s investment properties have been REBIEEMHE 2 A FEEHRIBEANEE
arrived at on the basis of valuations carried out at the end of W R 2 B & BB FEER N S H
the reporting period by an independent qualified professional MARFTEITHEFEMG - ZEED2ESR
valuer not connected with the Group. The valuations were P B Rz A ENT AT ERE
arrived at by reference to recent market prices for similar B e
properties in similar locations and conditions.
All of the Group’s property interests held under operating REBEBBLERNFERNESKE R
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are MERSR R ERERZH U AL EBEE
measured using the fair value model and are classified and Xt 8 WHBRARIMEREDS - K=
accounted for as investment properties. As at 31 March 2012, T ——F=RA=+—"H ZEVE#E=RZ
the carrying amount of such property interests amounted BR M & 4&229,008,0008 L (=& — —F :
to HK$229,008,000 (2011: HK$208,442,000). 208,442,000/ 7T ) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2012

HE_T——F=A=1—HIFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. Y% BEERXE

Furniture,
Leasehold  Computer fixtures and Motor  Plant and
properties equipment equipment  vehicles machinery Total
B %E
BENx EERE S RE  HERMSE @t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS$'000
FHEL THL FAL FHL THL THL
COST OR VALUATION RABHHE
At 1 April 2010 RZE-SEMA—H 100,770 29,924 103,342 11,254 580,607 825,897
Additions e - 9 467 650 5,552 6,678
Transfer to investment properties (note) gRERanE () (424) = - - - (424)
At 31 March 2011 RZE——F=A=+—H 100,346 29,933 103,809 11,904 586,159 832,151
Additions NE = 25 162 - 4,280 4,467
Disposals e - (3,438) (2,492) (2,570)  (39,102)  (47,602)
Transfer to investment properties (note) ERagans () (21,887) - - - - (21,887)
At 31 March 2012 R=E-—F=f=+-H 78,459 26,520 101,479 9,334 551,337 767,129
Comprising: 2
At cost KAE 67,909 26,520 101,479 9,334 551,337 756,579
At valuation - 1991 fEE-—AN—F 10,550 - - - - 10,550
78,459 26,520 101,479 9,334 551,337 767,129
DEPRECIATION AND RERRE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 April 2010 RZE-SEMA—H 16,834 23,045 90,045 9,039 449,282 588,245
Provided for the year RERE 1,544 1,433 2,693 477 33,828 39,975
Eliminated on transfer R (34) - - - = (34)
At 31 March 2011 RZZ-——%=A=t-H 18,344 24,478 92,738 9516 483,110 628,186
Provided for the year RERE 1,562 1,078 2,159 427 25,191 30,417
Impairment loss recognised RERRER A
in profit or loss B - - - - 14,126 14,126
Eliminated on disposals HE B3 - (3,407) (2,492) (2,231)  (34,822)  (42,952)
Eliminated on transfer R (6,646) - - - - (6,646)
At 31 March 2012 RZE——F=f=+—H 13,260 22,149 92,405 7,112 487,605 623,131
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2012 R-E-—F=f=+-H 65,199 4,371 9,074 1,622 63,732 143,998
At 31 March 2011 RZE——F=f=+-H 82,002 5,455 11,071 2,388 103,049 203,965
FEBEBRE R D & 95
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
HE-T——F=A=+—HILEE

14.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONT'D)

Note: During each of the two years ended 31 March 2011
and 2012, the management resolved to rent out certain
of its leasehold properties to outsiders for rental income
and ended owner-occupation. These properties should
be accounted for as investment properties. Upon the
transfer from property, plant and equipment to investment
properties, these properties were revalued with the increase
in fair value of HK$40,979,000 (2011: HK$1,321,000)
being credited to other property valuation reserve.

The cost or valuation of leasehold properties in Hong Kong,
which included prepaid lease payments, is depreciated over
forty years on a straight line basis and after taking into
account of the estimated residual value. The cost of buildings
situated on leasehold land outside Hong Kong is amortised
over a period of fifty years or, where shorter, the remaining
term of the leases on a straight line basis and after taking
into account of the estimated residual value.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of other items
of property, plant and equipment, other than leasehold
properties, over their estimated useful lives, using the reducing
balance method at the following rates per annum:

Computer equipment 25%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10 - 25%
Motor vehicles 20 - 25%
Plant and machinery 15 - 30%

During the year, the directors conducted a review of the
Group’s plant and machinery and identified a number
of physically damaged and technical obsolescent assets.
Accordingly, impairment loss of HK$14,126,000 (2011: nil)
has been recognised in profit or loss in respect of these plant
and machinery, which are used in the Group’s electronic
products segment.
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14. V¥ BERRZREZ)

Mz : 82— ——FRk=-_F——-F=A
=St BLIREFESFE  BEE
FRANNFATHBAERRARETHE
EMEANRBMBASMALRIEEE
B ZEMERINEREDE -
BYE - BEREEERZREY
EF - ZEWMERSH MATEE
B2 3%{840,979,0008 (=T ——
11,321,000 7T ) 51 A E fth # 2
b Ef#E -

BREANEEREERHENEZRAE
SHEELE A RGEERNERELER
AFFAENE - URBENIMR ZEE
T2 BT 2 RAKE B R A RISREER A
HREERSOFH(MBREFH) BT
BREMGE S -

HmE BELAREGEB(HEYERK
SN ThR A EH A B MRS BRE RO E
PEAMBEERAR - FAAFXRMAT :

B R 25%

Rifh - B REE 10 - 25%
AE 20 - 25%
R 5 % 4 25 15 - 30%

RAREE  EFREAREEZRE RS -
WERIZENBEBERBINAKRZEE - A
It ERMAREEFERDBHERAZEE
N2 A B s R ERR14,126,0008 T (==
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For the year ended 31 March 2012

HE—F—

14.

ZFZA=+—HILFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONT'D)

The carrying value of the leasehold properties shown above
comprises properties situated on land held under:

14. V¥ BERKE(E)

FRAEMEBRURNUATIEOFEZ L
Wz HEEER :

2012 2011

—E——fF —E——%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Long leases in Hong Kong ERBURBHENES 12,228 20,253
Medium term leases outside ERBLAINBE AP B LFH

Hong Kong 52,971 61,749

65,199 82,002

The valuation of leasehold properties was carried out by a
firm of independent professional valuers in 1991 on an open
market value for existing use basis. The Group has adopted
the transitional relief provided by paragraph 80A of HKAS
16 from the requirement to make revaluation on a regular
basis of the Group’s leasehold properties and, accordingly,
no further revaluation of leasehold properties will be carried
out. Had these leasehold properties with a carrying amount
at 31 March 2012 of HK$7,748,000 (2011: HK$15,773,000)
been carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, the carrying value of these
leasehold properties at 31 March 2012 would have been
stated at HK$7,381,000 (2011: HK$15,025,000).

HEMER KRB ILEEMGEMTR LN
—FRBFAREEZ AFAMEETHE -
AEERNEBES LA 1655 FE80ARE
BRETEHEGMAEEREYE 2 BE
% WU BAE - S EHEBEEYE o MEE
MER—_ZT——F=A=+—HBz2EEME
7,748,000 jo( =& — — 4 : 15,773,000
BIT)RKANER R E R RTHIREERE
PR - WEREMER=_T——F=A=+
—HZRME{ERA7,381,00080( =2 ——
£ : 15,025,000 7T) °

FEEIRERA

—z-——gFm | O/
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15. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 15. ENHEENRIE
The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise: AEBEZENHERERE
2012 2011
—E-CF —E——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Leasehold land held under FEBRBIEINAR BT L
medium term leases BEZHELH
outside Hong Kong 3,653 3,774
Analysed for reporting purposes as: HERFENDITE
Current asset MBEE 121 121
Non-current asset FERBEE 3,532 3,653
3,653 3,774
16. PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT COSTS 16. EmBEBRAL
HK$'000
FHET
COST R E
At 1 April 2010, 31 March 2011 R-_ZT—ZTFMA—H - —T——F=A=+—H
and 31 March 2012 E=ZZ——F=R=+—8H 1,732
AMORTISATION By
At 1 April 2010, 31 March 2011 R-ZZE—ZEFMWA—H - —T——F=A=+—H
and 31 March 2012 E=ZZT——F=RA=+—H 1,732
CARRYING VALUE BREE
At 31 March 2012 and RZE——F=A=+—HK
31 March 2011 —Z——F%=A=+—H =
Product development costs are amortised over a period of EmBERKANABGZERNAFHARNE -
five years on a straight line basis.
98 Starlight International Holdings Limited
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17.

18.

——HFZA=+—HIFE

GOODWILL 17. B8
HK$'000
FHT
COST RAE
At 1 April 2010, 31 March 2011 R-E—ZTEMNA—R - _E—F=A=+—HRK
and 31 March 2012 —E——F#=A=+—H 28,053
IMPAIRMENT BE
At 1 April 2010 and R_ZE—ZEFNMNA—BR-_FT——F=A=+—8H
31 March 2011 1,569
Impairment loss recognised RIB R 2 R E &S
in profit or loss 8,819
At 31 March 2012 R-—Z——F=ZA=+—H 10,388
CARRYING VALUE REE
At 31 March 2012 R-ZE——F=A=+—H 17,665
At 31 March 2011 R—ZTE——&F=ZA=1+—H 26,484

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are

disclosed in note 18.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL 18.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill of carrying
value amounting to HK$17,665,000 (2011: HK$26,484,000)
as set out in note 17 has been allocated to three cash-
generating units (“CGUs"), including three subsidiaries in the
design, manufacture and sale of electronic products segment
operating in Canada, the United States of America and the PRC
amounting to nil, HK$17,665,000 and nil (2011: HK$8,111,000,
HK$17,665,000 and HK$708,000), respectively.

B8R ERAF BRI 183 E -

R ZRERNR

HBERARAME - W17 EEE R
17,665,000 7T (=& ——4%F : 26,484,000
B ZEEBEW I RE=ARESELEN
([REEEBM])  BE=ZFIRMNEX
FRRPERER  HERHESFER
XBzMBAE - DA AZ - 17,665,000
BILERE(ZZT——%F:8,111,0008 T
17,665,000/ 7T % 708,000/ 7T ©

FEEIR AR A

—z-——gm |9
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HE—F—

ZFE=ZA=1+—HIFE

18. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL 18. BEZmERR (&)
(CONT’'D)
The recoverable amount of the relevant CGUs has been RS EE BN AT URE €58 IR ERE
determined on the basis of value in use calculation. The BETE  SAECAEAEMEDEERKHER
key assumptions for the value in use calculation are those ARER R R KD RIEE BRI AT BB K
regarding the discount rates, growth rates and expected AR7EAEE - BEIEEEABRBRAF RGET
changes to revenue and direct costs during the budgeted BRI » Z A RR M ISR N EKEEE
period. The management estimates discount rates using pre- VAR IR & E A BB AL A LR BV AT A o IRA K
tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time BREKA 2 B ERIBAE ) & 8 T35 R k&
value of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. Changes MHER S EH (5T ©
in revenue and direct costs are based on past practices and
expectations of future changes in the market.
During the year, the Group performed impairment review RAEE  AEBERBEEREEBBIRKA
for goodwill based on cash flow forecasts of each of the ERFVBHEEMEEZ =AReEELEN
three CGHs derived from the most recent financial budget AR REEIENEERE UKL
for the next five years approved by the management and BO0% (T ——F : 0%)ERREEREF
cash flows beyond the five year period are extrapolated using B7BEERE  ANtEBAR S REZ
0% (2011: 0%) growth rate. The rate used to discount the BEIRE A7 4% (ZF——F 1 7.98%) ° &
forecast cash flows is 7.4% (2011: 7.98%). During the year E_T——_F=A=+—HIEFERN &%
ended 31 March 2012, the Group recognised impairment EpMESBRMERARFENEEFER
losses of HK$8,111,000 (2011: nil) and HK$708,000 (2011: BEt - HEREEEL 2 E R R ERR
nil) in relation to two subsidiaries engaged in the design, BE188,111,0008 (= ——F : )
manufacturing and sale of electronic products in Canada 708,000 (=& ——% : &) - TEZZE
and the PRC due to the operating loss and the uncertainty Fii /8 A RSB E = B8 B R KRBT = T HERE ©
of future prospects of these subsidiaries.
19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. BiHBEQTES
2012 2011
—B-CF —E——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Cost of investments in REEE N BRIRE KA -
associates, unlisted JELET 6,510 9,310
Share of post-acquisition results, JEAE U B 12 2545
net of dividend received Ik 2 Y% B (360) (1,134)
6,150 8,176
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONT'D) 19.

Details of the Group's associates are as follows:

FELEE N R ()
AR HEARFEDT :

Form of Place of Attributable
business registration/ Nominal value of equity interest
Name of associate structure operations registered capital to the Group Principal activities
KEBER
NGRS EBLERIA i %5 A EREE e §: TEEH
2012 2011
ZF ZT——F
Danehill Investments Limited Cayman HK$7,000,000 *  48.28% Investment holding
(Holdings) Limited liability Islands
company
BREAAT REES 7,000,000 7 RERR
Interforce Limited Limited Hong Kong HK$500,000 30% 30% Trading in electronic
liability products
company
EABRAA BREARAT 0 500,000 7T EEETER
* This associate ceased operations and was deregistered @ REBEZE-_ZT——-—F=A=+—81t
during the year ended 31 March 2012. FE ZBEERARKRIEEELE

The associates are indirectly held by the Company through
its wholly-owned subsidiaries.

Included in the cost of investments in associates is goodwill
of HK$3,779,000 (2011: HK$3,779,000) arising on acquisition
of an associate in prior year.

The summarised financial information in respect of the
Group's associates is set out below:

L RFRARNREBEZENE A RRE

KA e

BN B 2 & RSB E 8 13 O S U B B
BNRIFTEA ZRE3,779,0008 (= Z
——% : 3,779,000/ 7T) °

BERASEBREAR2MBERRINDT

2012 2011
—E-—CfF —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Total assets BEMAE 20,060 31,750
Total liabilities BfRAERE (12,159) (19,025)
Net assets BESE 7,901 12,725
Share of net assets L& EFE 2,371 4,397
Turnover BT 100,197 148,376
(Loss) profit for the year AREE(EE)RF (3,584) 986
Share of (losses) profits and FEAG B N A (B8 )% Fl &
total comprehensive ZHE(FAY) W858
(expense) income of associates (1,696) 291
FREERERAR

101

e |




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n‘/T\

e B R R o B R

For the year ended 31 March 2012

HE_T——F=[A=1+—HIFE
20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 20. AHEEZRE
2012 2011
—E——F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Equity securities AR A F&
Unlisted shares, at cost JEETMRRD  RAKA 26,690 26,690
Less: Impairment losses recognised B BREREE R (17,290) (2,650)
9,400 24,040
Analysed for reporting purposes as: HERBERODINT A
Non-current asset FERBEE 9,400 24,040

The above unlisted investments represent investments in
unlisted equity securities issued by private entities incorporated
in Hong Kong. They are measured at cost less impairment
loss at the end of the reporting period because the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that their fair
values cannot be measured reliably.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, an impairment loss
of HK$14,640,000 (2011: nil) was recognised in profit or loss
which mainly comprised an impairment of HK$13,600,000
for an unlisted equity investment of 17% (2011: 17%) equity
interest in Net Plus Company Limited (“Net Plus”), a company
engaged in investment holding and provision of healthcare
related services. At 31 March 2012, the directors reviewed
the recoverability of the carrying amount of Net Plus with
reference to the present value of the estimated future cash
flows expected to arise from dividends to be received from
the investment and an impairment loss of HK$13,600,000
has been recognised. The carrying amount of the interest
in Net Plus as at 31 March 2012 was HK$9,400,000 (2011:
HK$23,000,000).
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EiF ETRERRBAEMAILLAER
BITZHFLETERAESRE - ARAERF
EBEEMAFTHEEER  NAREFR/ARE
FAEERFEE  AUZERENBEH
BRIER AR EBEAE -

REE-T—=—F=A=1+—HIFE R
B R EETE14,640,0008 0( = F——
F &) FEERRFREERRERR
AR AR 2 22 RINet Plus Company Limited
(TNet Plus)Z217% (ZZF——%F : 17%) &
KN 2 3 L IRARE 25 E13,600,000
BT RZTE——_F=A=+—H EF2
EZHHARREZIRE ZRBFTEE 2G5 B
%BE & REREREMNet PlusPREEZ AT
B4 - I FE SRR (B B 813,600,000/ 7T © 7
—E——F=A=+—H " ®Net PlusZ#
%% Z BRI {8 A&9,400,000/8 L( — T — —4F ¢
23,000,000/ 7T) °
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21. FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AT 21.
FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS/

EERBRAFEESARRZ

EWMEE TEESRMIA

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Assets Liabilities
BE afE
31.3.2012 31.3.2011 31.3.2012 31.3.2011
—F--f T —F =F--f T —F
=Z=B=+—-H =A=+—-H =ZB=+-H =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FHIT BT FAT
() Financial assets designated (i) WFHEE 2T
at fair value through REATEE
profit or loss settled SFAB®EZ
on net basis: SREE
Buy-write THEBEZEE
certificates on: HHER
- equity securities listed in —REBLEMZ
Hong Kong R A58 - 1 - -
— equity securities listed —REBFI
outside Hong Kong EmzBRAFES 18 19 - =
18 20 - -
(i) Derivative financial (i) WFBEEZIFET
instruments not BEWIAY
designated as hedging TESBIE :
instruments settled
on net basis:
Options on equity securities REBZINETZ
listed outside Hong Kong BRARE R B - = (17) =
18 20 (17) -
Ft R B FR S BR A &)
—z-——ggg | 03
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21.

ZFE=ZA=1+—HIFE

FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AT
FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS/
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONT'D)

The buy-write certificates contain embedded derivatives which
are not closely related to the host contracts, accordingly, the
entire combined contracts have been designed as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss.

On inception of the buy-write certificates, the strike price of
the underlying equity securities, maturity date and observation
period has been determined. At the end of each observation
period or on maturity of the buy-write certificates, market
price of the underlying equity securities will be compared to
the strike price. The buy-write certificates will be terminated
and settled in cash if the market price is higher than strike
price. The buy-write certificates will be settled in shares if
the market price is lower than the strike price.

The fair values of buy-write certificates are determined by
securities brokers using valuation models based on inputs
such as share price, volatility, dividend yield of the underlying
equity securities, and the fair values of options on equity
securities are determined with reference to quoted market
ask prices.

104

Starlight International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2012

21.

BEERRLQAVEEFAERZ
ERMEE TTEERMIA(E

BETHERESEIANETVME IR
ANTETE - At - TBEAHANEHETE
REBEATFEEFABSZZEREE °

RATLBEEHRHRER  CETHARAR
FZITHE  IHARERY - REBERY
ERE BRI EREERE - BARRAE
HFZMERRTEBEETLER - HEEH
WEBZTESRITEE BEAHER
AR RIARE AT - BRI HEERZ
MERRETES  HHEBRSARERF

A

=

BERHEREZ A TEETHEFLLRA
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22.

23.

——HFZA=+—HIFE

INVENTORIES 22. ®E
2012 2011
=F-=F It
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiET FHET
Raw materials R R 69,678 103,624
Work in progress £ & 6,741 7,290
Finished goods LR 168,764 234,269
245,183 345,183

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
during the year amounted to HK$571,348,000 (2011:
HK$532,743,000).

DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

RAFEE  RNEA2ARERERAT L
Z1FEKRARES71,348,0008 (=& ——
£ : 532,743,000/ 7T) °

23. BWiRE - RERFANKE

2012 2011

—E——fF —E——fF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHB T

Trade debtors FEWE 5 BRI 68,877 111,780
Deposits with securities brokers BERL TS 98 5,523
Advances to suppliers BRTHIERS 9,901 20,574
Prepayments and other receivables T8 - SR I8 K H At fE R IE 7,511 46,261
86,387 184,138

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group has written
off other receivables with an amount of HK$17,450,000
(2011: HK$680,000) which mainly comprised a non-refundable
advance payment of HK$13,260,000 (2011: nil) for certain
technology patent which the management considered
irrecoverable as at 31 March 2012.

REZE-_T——F=ZA=+—HILEFEE &
SEREEER-_Z——-F=A=+—HBR
77T BT U B 7 T 45 1 B 6 L fth B WK
B(EZREAAREBNKIE3,260,000
BI(ZZT——%F : #£)) 17,450,000/ 7T
(ZZF——% : 680,000%&7T) °

FEEIR AR A

—z-——gFm | 100
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23.

ZFE=ZA=1+—HIFE

(CONT’D)
The aged analysis of trade debtors net of allowance for

doubtful debts presented based on the invoice date at the
end of the reporting period is as follows:

DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 23.

EWERE - BEREMNKE
)

BEBWRRE AL ERE SR
H(G R ) 2 RBATHT -

,tmgH

(%
?

2012 2011

—E-—F —E——4F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

0 — 30 days 0 - 30H 36,802 75,387
31 — 60 days 31 - 60H 4,033 9,132
61 — 90 days 61 - 90H 5,934 2,707
Over 90 days B0 H 22,108 24,554
68,877 111,780

The Group allows an average credit period ranging from 30
days to 90 days to its trade customers. Before accepting
any new customers, the management will internally assess
the credit quality of the potential customer and define
appropriate credit limits. Management closely monitors the
credit quality of trade and other receivables and considers
the trade and other receivables that are neither past due
nor impaired to be of a good quality.

Included in the Group’'s trade debtors are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of HK$28,042,000 (2011:
HK$27,785,000) which are past due as at the reporting date
for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss. The
directors of the Company determined that these receivables
are either due from customers of good credit quality with no
history of default or covered by credit insurance. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.
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REBERTEESEP 2 FAREKEN T
30HZE90H - REMNEMFEFA - B
BRI EEEEP 2 EEEERFIVE
EZEERE EREEVERESHREM
BUEEBZ EEBE X « WRAREHIER
BB REMEREEZEEZRIT -

AEBE 2 EKRESERBERERERLE
28,042,000/ (=& ——% : 27,785,000
BIT) Z FEIERIE - BRARIEN ImE B HE
BER - BRKEWARIEHREBERE - K
ARRIEEHELERUREREREEER
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23. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 23. FEBRIE - BE R AN RKIE
(CONT'D) (%)
The aged analysis of trade debtors which are past due but EEHEEREZERE SRE BRI DT
not impaired is as follows: R
2012 2011
—F-=F —F——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Overdue 31 — 60 days #HI31 - 60H 11,020 544
Overdue 61 — 90 days #mHi61 — 90H 3,167 2,687
Overdue over 90 days B HAEB 890 B 13,855 24,554
28,042 27,785
Based on the experience of the management and repayment BEEBECEBREEF ZENRLE B8
record of the customers, trade receivables which are past HERRERLEFAED 2 E S EIKERIE—
due but not impaired and not associated with litigations MRATUEE - Sz SRR AR 2 AR S
are generally recoverable. For those balances associated RRAREBHRBEMEZRERTEZE
with litigations, the directors of the Company will assess =M o IR AT YR [ 15 T8 R A o
the cases based on legal advices from lawyers and provide
allowance for the irrecoverable debts.
Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts RIREEET
2012 2011
—ET-CF —T——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
At beginning of the year F4) 31,257 30,271
Impairment losses recognised
on debtors B R EWERIE 2 R EE B 7,221 1,161
Amount written off Sk (5,365) (175)
At end of the year Fx 33,113 31,257
FEBEBRERD &
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23.

24.

ZFE=ZA=1+—HIFE

DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
(CONT’D)

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually
impaired trade debtors with an aggregated balance of
HK$31,054,000 (2011: HK$29,198,000) which have either
been placed under liquidation or in financial difficulties.

The management has withdrawn a litigation against a trade
debtor in prior year as they consider that the legal and
professional expenses involved will be high, and the related
debtor balance of HK$2,059,000 (2011: HK$2,059,000) was
individually impaired.

Included in trade debtors are bills discounted with recourse
amounting to HK$37,665,000 (2011: HK$73,911,000)
and factored debtors amounting to HK$9,262,000 (2011:
HK$1,084,000). For debts discounted with recourse and
factored debtors, the Group will need to repay the financial
institutions if there are credit losses on the receivables
before the end of discounting/factoring period, accordingly,
the Group continues to recognise the full carrying amount
of these debtors and has recognised the cash received as a
secured borrowing (see note 28).

AMOUNT DUE FROM/TO AN ASSOCIATE

The amount was unsecured, interest-free and has been fully
settled during the year ended 31 March 2012.
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23.

24,

EWEREE - e RESRKE
(&)
AREBERLEENEREZEKE S KR
B - 484582 531,054,0008 T( & — —
 : 29,198,000 L) - RESZERFE
BB M RRE -

EREERNBEIFERDE —ZESHBEBHA
2 TTERFIPRZERREXER
ERE - mAER Y AR IE 45 8422,059,000
BIL(ZF——4F 2,059,000 7T ) E &5l
A

BKREZREPFEAEEBERENEZIR
37,665,000/ 70( =& ——4 : 73,911,000
770 ) R E Bh IR FE YRR 189,262,000/ L (=
T ——4 1,084,000 L) ° Bt EBRE
BRESRERBEKEREEM S - MARER
HRAERAIEREELREEESE - BIXE
BT EZnepigiEaEg : Bt - NEE#
BRRERZSEBRE 2 REE - WER
BlREABEAEE(RME28) -

FEUR,PEAS B D B BRIE
EEREREEN  LETERBE-T—
—E= A=+ B IEEERBEN -
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25.

26.

27.

——HFZA=+—HIFE

INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING 25. HEEEZRE
2012 2011
—E-——F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FET

Listed securities EFmES

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong REB LW ZREAES 323 479
Equity securities listed outside Hong Kong &SR LT 2 B AN 1,271 1,773
1,594 2,252

BANK BALANCES AND CASH 26. RITHEFERAE

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group
and short term bank deposits with an original maturity of
three months or less at an average interest rate of 0.01%
(2011: 0.01%) per annum.

CREDITORS AND ACCRUED CHARGES 27.

RARGFRALDEAEERERS  UR
RERZEARAEIS - BTHENEA
0.01E(=F——F: 0.01F) 2 EWRT
R -

BNEREARETER

2012 2011
—ZT-CF —E——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Trade creditors BB ZERIA 59,091 96,140
Royalty and withholding tax payable FET A B R TR F 10,729 16,820
Other creditors and accrued expenses £ b & BR I8 & fE 5+ 5 X 38,359 38,807
108,179 151,767
FREERERAR
—z-——gFm |00
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27.
(CONT'D)

CREDITORS AND ACCRUED CHARGES 27.

The aged analysis of trade creditors presented based on

the invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as

ENREAREER(E)

R EHEARZEZEHZI 2 ENE SR
HZ BRSO ¢

follows:
2012 2011
—E-—F —ET——%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
0 — 30 days 0 - 30H 27,165 34,823
31 - 60 days 31 - 60H 7,240 14,723
61 — 90 days 61 - 90H 6,214 2,912
Over 90 days #3890 H 18,472 43,682
59,091 96,140
The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90 REER 2 FHRENF0B -
days.
-
28. BORROWINGS 28. fBE
2012 2011
—E-—F —E——4F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trust receipts and import loans BEEE R AR ER 39,311 70,257
Short term bank loans MHSRITE R 77,757 72,780
Loans related to bills B EBRERR
discounted with recourse FERIER 37,665 73,911
Debt factoring loans BEREARIRE K 8,385 1,084
Other loan H b B 36,300 35,300
199,418 253,332
Analysed as: DT
Secured B 163,118 74,995
Unsecured AR 36,300 178,337
199,418 253,332
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#HE-T

28.

29.

——HFZA=+—HIFE

BORROWINGS (CONT’'D)

The other loan is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand (see also note 40(b)). The remaining borrowings as
at 31 March 2011 and 2012 are repayable on demand or

within one year.

Except for the other loan as mentioned above, the Group's
borrowings are floating-rate borrowings which are mainly
linked with Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR") and
bear interest at a range from 2.6% to 4.5% (2011: 2.0% to
3.7%) per annum. Interest is repriced every month.

DEFERRED TAXATION

The followings are the major deferred tax (liabilities) assets
recognised and movements thereon during the current and

28. BE (&)

HtERREER 28 RARERKEER
(TREKIE40(D)) - R -FE——F R T —
“HEZA=T-RZBRTEREAERERERK

—FREE -

BREMEMEZRIN  AEBZEBERAZER
B FEZHEHEBRTREREIBSRITRH
EWE D HEE  WRFEF K2 6/EFE45E
(ZZ——F : 20EE3.7E): 8 - B F

BERBRAEMEE -

29. ELEHIE

AEERBAEFEEEATIBELEHRRA

(ABE)BEREZHNT

prior years:
Accelerated Revaluation
tax Tax of
depreciation losses  properties Others Total
MERERE  HEBE BN Hity AE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TRET
(Note)
(B
At 1 April 2010 RZZ-ZFMA—A (6,302) 5,906 - 3,438 3,042
Credit (charge) to profit or loss FAMNE)ER 128 (130) = 698 696
At 31 March 2011 R-B—%=R=1-H (6,174) 5,776 - 4,136 3,738
Credit (charge) to profit or loss FAME)ER 3,454 (3,526) (3,022) (3,892) (6,986)
Charge to other comprehensive MeEt2ENE
income - - (2,357) - (2,357)
At 31 March 2012 RZE-—Z#=A=+—-H (2,720) 2,250 (5,379) 244 (5,605)

Note:

Others mainly represent temporary difference arising from

unrealised profits on inventories.

B H b B S 2 R BRI E

ERERER -

FEEIR AR A
—E-CFFH
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For the year ended 31 March 2012

HE—T——F=A=+—HIFE
29. DEFERRED TAXATION (CONT’D) 29. EEMIE(E)
For the purposes of presentation in the consolidated statement ARG EMBRARREINMS » & TIET
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities HMEEERBEBEDHHE - BEVERSHAR
have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred ZIEEFIEER DN -
tax balances for financial reporting purposes:
2012 2011
—E-CF ===
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Deferred tax assets RIETIHE B 143 3,943
Deferred tax liabilities RIETHIEBE (5,748) (205)
(5,605) 3,738
The Group has not recognised deferred tax asset in respect R R RETERT R g 7 2R R - NS B I £ 5
of tax losses of HK$551,456,000 (2011: HK$377,472,000) FiIAE1E551,456,0008 o ( =Z & — — 4 :
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included 377,472,000 0 ) ERBELEHIBEEE - &
in the unrecognised tax losses are losses of HK$154,889,000 R IEEE B 15154,889,0008 L (==
(2011: HK$115,099,000) that will expire in the years of ——¢ 115,099,000 )R = —=
2013 to 2030 (2011: 2012 to 2030), other tax losses may FE_EB=FF(ZT——F: _T——F
be carried forward indefinitely. ET=TF)INBP2EE - EMBIESE
A MR B AR ES o
Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated REFEFEN BT NF—H—H
financial statements in respect of the temporary differences PR BARERRAKED KRS
attributable to the undistributed retained profits earned by i Al B B AN TE AN AR o AR AN & B ) 4 o BT
the subsidiaries in the PRC amounting to HK$19,064,000 A= R 7 B[O B R T AR RE A A] B 5 s 8
(2011: HK$15,084,000) starting from 1 January 2008 under OEREZRE  FEGEE G REN ELS
the New Law of the PRC that requires withholding tax upon ZHBARIZAD KRB RN ZER=R
the distribution of such profits to the shareholders, as the 19,064,000/ (== ——% : 15,084,000
Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the BIT)FHRIELERIE -
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
HE-ZT——F=F=1—HIFE

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. BA
Nominal
value Number of
per share ordinary shares HK$'000
BREE ERRHAE TET
HK$
BT
Authorised: EERA
At 1 April 2010 RZZE—ZTEMA—H 0.40 1,250,000,000 500,000
Increase on capital reorganisation  FXZANE 4B & 1N 3,750,000,000 -
At 31 March 2011 and RZB——4$=A=+—H
31 March 2012 k=—E——F=A=+—H 0.10 5,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAERA
At 1 April 2010 RZZE—ZTEMA—H 0.40 785,088,828 314,035
Capital reorganisation RAEH - (235,527)
Issue of shares upon open offer AARZEEMETRN 0.10 628,071,062 62,807
Issue of shares upon exercise of B 17 b e A 4 1 32 1T AR 1
share options 0.10 62,086,400 6,209
Issue of shares upon exercise of BT R
warrants (note 32) 17D (PHRE32) 0.10 30,000,000 3,000
At 31 March 2011 R=—ZE——F=HA=+—H 0.10 1,505,246,290 150,524
Repurchase of shares A e 0.10 (9,530,000) (953)
At 31 March 2012 R-—E——F=A=+—H 0.10 1,495,716,290 149,571
Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the special general BEARIR_E—FEF A - +=HE1T
meeting of the Company held on 23 June 2010, the par 2SR GRBZENRARE BB
value of each of the existing shares in issue is reduced from HERERETRMZEBRA0.30/8 T
HK$0.40 to HK$0.10 by the cancellation of HK$0.30 of the BRABEHTRG ZEER0.407% TLH
- i ~ : el ET TSR % 5T
paid-up capital on each issued share and each unissued MEO0N0B T - W% H R EE0.40/8 T2

RETKRO DT ALIRTREE.10E T Z
EAERMD(TRAEAR]) RAEHER =
T-FEXNA-_+=ZBTFABETKE
KN A B Z % E R 2 A500,000,0007 7T
% /45,000,000,000% F A% {E0.10/8 7T 2

share of HK$0.40 each is subdivided into 4 adjusted shares
of HK$0.10 each (the “Capital Reorganisation”). Upon
completion of the Capital Reorganisation at 5:00 p.m. on
23 June 2010, the authorised share capital of the Company

becomes HK$500,000,000 divided into 5,000,000,000 adjusted @R AR R - H 785 088 82808 SR E A
shares of HK$0.10 each, of which 785,088,828 adjusted 0.10% 7T 7 M@ HERH B 34T o AR
shares of HK$0.10 are in issue. The credit arising from FREA 7 EED S AN 58 A O £ o

the capital reduction is credited to the capital redemption
reserve of the Company.

FEEBRERAR
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For the year ended 31 March 2012

HE-T——F=A=+—HILEE
30. SHARE CAPITAL (CONT'D) 30. RAE(#&
Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the same $Efﬁiﬁﬁﬂ$@ﬁjﬁi%%%lj eTEBE
special general meeting of the Company referred to above, BAER  HERSFEAREHAZERDE
the proposed issue of offer shares at a price of HK$0.12 BHENRBERD ZEENERESRMD
per offer share on the basis of 4 offer shares for every 5 0. 128 Tz BRETEERO 2EZ( A
adjusted shares (the “Open Offer”) is approved. The Open HBEE]) AHABREEN - —ZTF+ A
Offer has been completed on 21 July 2010 and 628,071,062 Z+—HB%K - W #17628,071,062AK % &
offer shares were issued. The proceeds from the Open Offer Rfn o ARBEZMRRERAAEERES
provide additional working capital to finance the Group’s BERHEEINEEESD -
daily operations.
The Company repurchased its own shares on the Stock Exchange REEZE-E——F=A=+—HIEFE 'K
during the year ended 31 March 2012 as follows: NABHRATEEERAOIT ¢
Number Price per share Aggregate
Month of shares Lowest Highest consideration
A g G| BRER BRE
=45 4]
HK$ HK$ HK$'000
BT BT FHET
September 2011 —T——%NA 3,410,000 0.096 0.117 353
October 2011 —T——F1H 2,340,000 0.096 0.102 229
December 2011 —F——%+-A4 3,780,000 0.100 0.102 382
9,530,000 964
The above shares were cancelled upon repurchase and iR E &S - At - KRR Z
accordingly the issued share capital of the Company was EETRAEENRZERN < HE B
reduced by the nominal value of these shares. The premium BEER BT EENR - —EHER
on repurchase was charged against accumulated profits/losses. EREROEEZREE ARG EE
An amount equivalent to the nominal value of the shares R B # s e
cancelled was transferred from accumulated profits/losses
to the capital redemption reserve.
All shares issued rank pari passu in all respects with the FIEEETROMNS ATEEEER 2RER
then existing shares in all aspects. NEBREFMA
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#HE=-T

31.

——FZA=+—HILFE

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Share option schemes of the Company

The Company has a share option scheme which was approved
and adopted at the special general meeting of the Company
held on 12 September 2002 (the “Old Scheme”) for a period
of 5 years. The primary purpose was to provide incentives
or rewards to participants for their contribution to the
Group. Eligible participants of the Old Scheme included any
employees, non-executive directors, suppliers of goods or
services, customers, advisors or consultants and shareholders
of any member of the Group.

The maximum number of share options which might be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Old Scheme must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% while
overall limit for all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised must not exceed 30% of the shares in issue

from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant in any
12 month period up to the date of the grant should not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue.

The period within which the shares should be taken up under
an option was any period as determined by the Board, which
should not be more than 5 years from the date on which the
option was granted. The option might be exercised by the
grantee at any time during the option period. Each share
option vested immediately at the date of grant.

The subscription price of the share options was determined
by the Board, but would be no less than the highest of (i)
the closing price of the shares on the offer date; (ii) the
average of the closing price of the shares of the 5 trading
day immediately preceding the offer date; or (iii) the nominal
value of the shares on the offer date.

31.

B IR T &
ENGPT LT ER

ARBERZZEZ_FNAATZBRITZR
RERAE LRBRFEASMAF 2 BEE
E(TEFE ) - EffSlE A2 EEY
AEBEEHZ BERRH SR K ER - Bt
B2 BER2EABRAEBEEMNKE QA
ZEMEE - FRITESR - AmRBHE
B BP ERARERRAR -

REBEFEMRL ZAEBRBEITEMA
EBTZESBRNAR  THEEETHCH
TP 210%  MERHREFTREZE
BARITHRBRES RRMDAE - TMSEB
D BEITRD Z30% °

BEEREREZBFI2EAAAR 528
ATTRERR B A m 31T i T 317 2B
BT BEAERDETERNZ1% -

BREANITEHRAEERHRE - EFATR
BRI BB RBRF o AR AR ERES
RAEMEBITERRE  SBERERRT
EHRARES -

BREZRBEEHESRRE  EABER
TERERRTERE - (VETEBREE AR
MZWHE: (NBEERRHBHAAEERS
BRAD FH U E : (i m R E L B H
ZTHIE °

FEEBRERAR
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31.

ZFZA=+—HILFE

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONT'D) 31.
Share option schemes of the Company (CONT’D)

The offer of a grant of share options could be accepted
within 21 days from the date of offer. The consideration
for the grant was HK$1 and it would in no circumstance
be refundable.

The OIld Scheme expired on 11 September 2007 and
thereafter, no more option could be granted pursuant to
the Old Scheme. In respect of the options already granted
under the Old Scheme, the provisions shall remain in force.
The movements of the share options granted to employees
pursuant to the Old Scheme were as follows:

BRESTE(AE)
ADT 2B 8 ()

REBREZZHTERL BABE21H
NEM - REBREZRER ST Zd
HETMBR THETRE -

EfZERN_ZTLFAAT+—BER -

% BTAAIRBESSRLBRE - E'METE
EFfEIERE2BREMS - BRGSED
REM - RIBEFHICAEBR L Z B4R
ZEERMT

Number of share options

BREZE
Cancelled/
Outstanding forfeited Outstanding
Exercise at beginning during at end
Date of grant price  of the year the year  of the year
rEER
B/ rEE
R B TEE  FHAERTE R Ris RATRE
HK$
BT
For the year ended 31 March 2012 HEZE=-F-—Ff
ZRA=t-HILEE
13 November 2006 ZZTRFE+—AT=H 0.3100 6,354,400 (6,354,400) -
4 January 2007 —TT+F—AMmA 0.3549 1,028,984  (1,028,984) -
1 February 2007 —TT+E-H—H 0.3677 187,088 (187,088) -
7 March 2007 —TT+E=RHLtH 0.4126 14,031,600  (14,031,600) -

21,602,072  (21,602,072) =

Exercisable at the end of the year RAFEERAITE

Weighted average exercise price (HK$) MEFHITHEE(ET)

0.3793 0.3793 N/A
i
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HE_T——F=A=1—HIFE

31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONT'D)

Share option schemes of the Company (CONT'D)

31.

BRESTE(AE)
AT 2B 8 ()

Number of share options

BREHE
Outstanding Exercised  Outstanding
Exercise  at beginning during at end
Date of grant price*  of the year  Adjustment* the year of the year
£4 KEER KEER
R A B> i R1T R AR 217k 8 RAT
HK$
BT
For the year ended Bz-z2-—-%
31 March 2011 ZRAZ+-HLEE
5 January 2006 2T F¥-AAA 0.1903 12,000,000 44,126,400 (56,126,400) -
13 November 2006 ZETRFT-At+=H 0.3100 2,000,000 7,354,400 (3,000,000) 6,354,400
4 January 2007 —ET+F—-HAMEA 0.3549 220,000 808,984 - 1,028,984
1 February 2007 “EZ+F#-f—H 0.3677 40,000 147,088 = 187,088
7 March 2007 “ZTLE=AtH 0.4126 3,000,000 11,031,600 - 14,031,600
17,260,000 63,468,472 (59,126,400) 21,602,072
Exercisable at the REEERATE
end of the year 21,602,072
Weighted average MEFATREET)
exercise price (HK$) 0.2453 0.2453 0.1964 0.3793
@ The number of share options and the corresponding * M 30T sl 2 A% E

exercise prices had been adjusted as a result of the Open
Offer as detailed in note 30.

The above share options were granted for an exercise period

of five years from the date of grant of the share options.

All outstanding share options expired in the current year

and were cancelled.

No share options have been granted to the directors of the

Company pursuant to the Old Scheme for the years ended
31 March 2012 and 2011.

BhEHBE RERZITEED TH

= o

NEERERRLAREAFAITE - A
BRARTEZERENAFESH - WK

BHE-T——Fr-_FT——F=RA=+—H
HFE  ARRYERBEEFSIRTFTEST

AT A o

FEEIR AR A
—E-CFFH

117




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
”ﬂicq,jﬁ$:¥ﬁit;Mﬁ

For the year ended 31 March 2012

HE—F—

31.

ZFE=ZA=1+—HIFE

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONT'D)
Share option schemes of the Company (CONT’D)

A new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”) was
approved and adopted at the special general meeting of
the Company held on 15 January 2008 for a period of 10
years. The primary purpose is to recognise the contribution of
participants and to recruit and retain high calibre employees
and attract human resources that are valuable to the Group.
Eligible participants of the New Scheme included any full
time employees (including directors, whether executive or
non-executive and whether independent or not), suppliers,
consultants, agents and advisors of the Group.

The maximum number of share options which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the New
Scheme must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the shares
in issue at the adoption of the New Scheme on 15 January
2008 while overall limit for all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised must not exceed 30% of the shares
in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the option granted to each participant in any
12 month period up to the date of the grant shall not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue unless certain conditions
are fulfilled.

The period within which the shares must be taken up under
an option is any period as determined by the Board, which
shall not be more than 10 years from the date on which
the option is granted. The option may be exercised by the
grantee at any time during the option period.

The subscription price of the share options is determined
by the Board, but will be no less than the highest of (i)
the closing price of the shares on the offer date; (ii) the
average of the closing price of shares on the 5 trading days
immediately preceding the offer date; or (iii) the nominal
value of the shares on the offer date.
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RENARE LEBRRARII0FZHE
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SBREZER  BERREESESRES
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31.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONT'D)
Share option schemes of the Company (CONT'D)

The offer of a grant of share options can be accepted within
28 days from the date of offer. The consideration for the grant
is HK$1 and it will in no circumstance be refundable.

The movements of the options granted to employees and an
advisor pursuant to the New Scheme were as follows:

31.

BRESTE(AE)
AT 2B 8 ()

BROBREZZNTAREL A BE28A
WM - RHBREZRERIET - %E
BEEAMBERATHIATRE °

R BIE R B R — R 2 MR
EZEBERNT :

Number of share options

BREHA
Cancelled/
Outstanding Granted forfeited Outstanding
Exercise at beginning during during at end
Date of grant Notes price  of the year the year the year  of the year
REER TEER KEER
it B4 (i3 TRE FPHATR BREE BHE#/RY AT
HKS
AT
For the year ended BE-T--F
31 March 2012 ZA=T-HIEFE
Employees: E&
28 January 2008 “2E\F-AZTNA (a) 0.2053 858,311 - - 858,311
15 October 2008 “FE\FTATIA (a) 0.0855 2,338,600 - (2,338,600) -
31 August 2010 “E-TF\A=1+-H (a) 0.1880 12,000,000 = - 12,000,000
29 November 2011 I R Ik W= (b) 0.1090 - 12,500,000 - 12,500,000
15,196,911 12,500,000  (2,338,600) 25,358,311
An advisor: —RER:
23 January 2008 “ZZ\5-A=1=H (a) 0.2228 701,580 - - 701,580
12 August 2010 “2-T£\A+ZH (a) 0.1880 300,000 - - 300,000
1 February 2012 “3-——%-f—-H (b) 0.1080 - 1,500,000 - 1,500,000
1,001,580 1,500,000 = 2,501,580
16,198,491 14,000,000  (2,338,600) 27,859,891
Exercisable at the end RAFERIITE
of the year 27,859,891
Weighted average exercise METFHTRE(ET)
price (HK$) 0.1756 0.1089 0.0855 0.1497
FEEBRERAR 119
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONT'D) 31. BRETEI(E
Share option schemes of the Company (CONT'D) RATZBRETE(E)
Number of share options
BREHE
Outstanding Granted Exercised Outstanding
Exercise at beginning during during at end
Date of grant Note price* of the year Adjustment*  the year the year  of the year
£4 TEER TEER KEER
&t A izt TEEr  HATE HE 2R 21T e R AT
HK$
BT
For the year ended BE-Z—-%Z=R
31 March 2011 ST-HLEE
Employees: E&
28 January 2008 “ZE\FE-F=TNB (3 0.2053 346,000 1,272,311 - (760,000) 858,311
15 October 2008 ZEEN\ETATEA () 0.0855 500,000 1,838,600 - - 2,338,600
31 August 2010 “Z-ZE\A=T-H (3 0.1880 = - 12,000,000 - 12,000,000
846,000 3,110,911 12,000,000 (760,000) 15,196,911
An advisor: —%ER
23 January 2008 “EE\E-A=T=H () 0.2228 150,000 551,580 - - 701,580
12 August 2010 “E-ZE\ATZB  (3) 0.1880 - - 2,500,000  (2,200,000) 300,000
150,000 551,580 2,500,000  (2,200,000) 1,001,580
996,000 3,662,491 14,500,000  (2,960,000) 16,198,491
Exercisable at the end RAFERAITHR
of the year 16,198,491
Weighted average exercise  MEFHTEEET)
price (HK$) 0.1478 0.1478 0.1880 0.1924 0.1756
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONT'D)
Share option schemes of the Company (CONT'D)

* The number of share options and the corresponding
exercise prices for share options granted in January 2008
and October 2008 had been adjusted as a result of the
Open Offer as detailed in note 30.

Notes:

(@) These share options were granted for an exercise period
of ten years from the date of grant of the share options
and vested immediately.

(b) These share options were granted for an exercise period
of five years from the date of grant of the share options
and vested immediately.

No share options have been granted to the directors of the
Company pursuant to the New Scheme for the years ended
31 March 2012 and 2011.

Total consideration received during the year from employees
and an advisor for taking up the options granted amounted to
HK$2 (2011: HK$1) and HK$1 (2011: HK$1) respectively.

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the
services received is measured based on the Black-Scholes

pricing model.

31.

BRESTE(AE)
AT 2B 8 ()

* BN 30 RAREE - B
—EENF-ARZZEZENETAH
RO zBREHRE RBEZITEE
ETHE-

fi i

(@) ZETEBREARHBHETFEATT
EI BN ERE o

(b) EEWRESELARERERT
FEUHEEEE -

BEZZT——Ffrk_FT—F=RA=+—H
WFE - ARRWEREHER TFEST
A BB AR AE -

REER - WEEES K —HEREENEK
EMXNZERES R A2BET(ZF——
FABTIRIEBET(ZFE——F 1EBT) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE—T——FZA=1+—HILFE

31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONT'D) 31. [BERESTEI(E)
Share option schemes of the Company (CONT'D) AATZEBRESE(E)
Grant date 12.8.2010 31.8.2010 29.11.2011 1.2.2012
—E2-%% —B-%F F--% Z=F-=F

RHBH NA+=H NA=+t—-H t—A=tnH —R-H
Fair value of share options BiEz

and assumptions: NTEERRE :
Fair value at measurement K&t 2R H

dates (HK$) ZRTEEGET) 0.0705 0.0720 0.0295 0.0272
Share price (HK$) IRE (L) 0.1880 0.1870 0.1030 0.1040
Exercise price (HK$) TRECET) 0.1880 0.1880 0.1090 0.1080
Expected volatility R 55.7% 57.6% 44.7% 39.8%
Expected option life (years) RATRRESR () 3 3 3 3
Expected dividend yield TEHAR B & 0% 0% 0% 0%
Risk-free interest rate R R = 0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the previous one
year. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted,
based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of
non transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural
considerations. Changes in the subjective input assumptions
could materially affect the fair value estimate.

The Group recognised total expense of HK$410,000 (2011:
HK$1,040,000) comprising HK$369,000 and HK$41,000 for
the year in relation to share options granted by the Company

to employees and an advisor respectively.
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31.

ZFZA=+—HILFE

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONT'D)

Share option scheme of The Singing Machine Company,
Inc. (“SMC”), a 51.69% (2011: 51.86%) owned subsidiary
of the Company

SMC's share option scheme was approved by SMC's shareholders
at the special meeting held on 6 September 2001 (the “SMC
Scheme”). The SMC Scheme was developed to provide a
means whereby the directors and selected employees, officers,
consultants, and advisors of SMC may be granted incentive
or non-qualified stock options to purchase common stock of
SMC. The SMC Scheme authorises an aggregate of 1,950,000
shares of SMC’s common stock and a maximum of 450,000
shares to any one individual in any one fiscal year.

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to each participant in
any 12 month period up to the date of the grant will be
300,000 shares.

The period within which the shares must be taken up under
an option is any period as determined by the Board of SMC,
which will not be more than 10 years (or 5 years in the case
of a holder with 10% or more of the common stock) from
the date on which the option is granted. Each option vested
in one year from the date of grant.

The subscription price of the share options is determined by
SMC's Stock Option Committee, which consists of two or
more directors chosen by the Board of SMC. The subscription
price of the share options will be no less than the closing
price of SMC's shares on the offer date (or, if granted to a
holder of 10% or more of the common stock, the subscription
price will be no less than 110% of the closing price of SMC's
shares on the offer date).

31.

BRETE(E)
KATEE51.69%(=F——4F:51.86%)
# 2% 2 it B 2 ®The Singing Machine
Company, Inc. ([SMC]) Z &R+ &

SMCEREGFEER_ZZE—FNLAKH
%Eﬁzﬂﬁﬁbh%w(gtﬁ%smcﬂﬁ%ﬁt;&
(ISMC&r&l]) e SMCEFEI DG TES « &
HhEREE  SRABR - BEREAASEK
ERGRBRARESMCERBR Z 7% -
SMC& & 5% # & 3£1,950,0000&8SMCE i@
B MBBAATRSVBREENERES
450,000 /%1% -

HEEREREZBI2BRRN  &28H
ATEFEBREMBITREFEITZR
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31.

T——F=A=+—HIFE

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONT'D)

Share option scheme of The Singing Machine Company,
Inc. (“SMC”), a 51.69% (2011: 51.86%) owned subsidiary
of the Company (CONT’'D)

The movements of the share options granted to directors
of the Company and employees of the Group pursuant to
the SMC Scheme were as follows:

31.

R ESTE(E

RATHEE51.69% (ZF——F :51.86%)
# 3 2 it B @ TThe Singing Machine
Company, Inc. ([SMCJ) zBERAE8I(#&)

BREBESMCEHEIMARREERAREZ B
BRRLBREZZHEIMT

Number of share options

BREHA
Outstanding Granted Outstanding
Exercise at beginning during at end
Date of grant price of the year the year of the year
RHiAH REA RERE REER
e H AT RERH H AT
us$
e
For the year ended Bz-2--%
31 March 2012 “A=t-BLEE
31 December 2002 ZREET_A=1-H 9.00 4,000 - 4,000
19 December 2003 “EZ=F+-AthA 1.97 4,880 = 4,880
6 February 2004 “EEME-ARA 1.54 6,500 = 6,500
26 February 2004 “ETNE-A=+A 1.36 20,000 - 20,000
29 March 2004 “EENFE=A=FNA 1.20 20,000 - 20,000
29 November 2004 “EERNET-AZTAR 0.75 40,000 - 40,000
1 December 2004 ZENE+-A-A 0.77 20,000 = 20,000
9 May 2005 —ZERERANA 0.60 34,000 - 34,000
31 March 2006 —EEXFZRA=1-H 0.32 60,000 - 60,000
10 April 2006 ZEERFEATH 033 42,000 - 42,000
31 March 2007 S ey = 0.93 60,000 - 60,000
31 March 2008 —EE\E=A=1-H 0.45 120,000 - 120,000
31 March 2009 ZZENE=A=1-H 0.1 120,000 - 120,000
31 March 2010 “E-TF-f=1-H 0.03 60,000 - 60,000
29 October 2010 “Z-ZETAZTAR 0.06 520,000 - 520,000
31 March 2011 —E-—fF=f=+-H 0.04 60,000 - 60,000
31 March 2012 —E--F=R=1-H 0.12 - 60,000 60,000
1,191,380 60,000 1,251,380
Exercisable at the end at the year WREERA{IHE 1,191,380
Weighted average exercise price (US$) MEFHTER(ET) 0.31 0.12 0.30
Holders of the share options EREREA
are analysed as follows: AT :
Directors 5% 80,000 - 80,000
Employees 8 1,111,380 60,000 1,171,380
1,191,380 60,000 1,251,380
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONT'D)

Share option scheme of The Singing Machine Company,
Inc. (“SMC”), a 51.69% (2011: 51.86%) owned subsidiary
of the Company (CONT’'D)

31.

BRESTE(E

RATEE51.69% (ZF——F :51.86%)
# 3= 2 iff B @ BThe Singing Machine
Company, Inc. ([SMC) zEBRRAE8I(&)

Number of share options

BREHE
Outstanding Granted Forfeited  Outstanding
Exercise  at beginning during during at end
Date of grant price of the year the year the year of the year
R A H F4 rEE rEE REER
1fEfE 15 RITEE RERH RERK el RATE
us$
EH
For the year ended BE-ZT——F%
31 March 2011 =A=t—-HLtFE
31 December 2002 “EE-_F+-A=+—H 9.00 5,500 - (1,500) 4,000
19 December 2003 “EE=F+-A+ANAH 1.97 5,710 - (830) 4,880
6 February 2004 “EENE=AAA 1.54 6,500 - = 6,500
26 February 2004 —EENE-A-+KA 1.36 20,000 - = 20,000
29 March 2004 “EEME=f-tAhH 1.20 20,000 = = 20,000
29 November 2004 —ZENF+-A=1+AA 0.75 40,000 - = 40,000
1 December 2004 “ZTENF+=-F—H 0.77 20,000 - = 20,000
9 May 2005 “EERFRANAE 0.60 57,000 = (23,000) 34,000
31 March 2006 “EEXF=A=1+—H 0.32 60,000 - = 60,000
10 April 2006 —EEXENATA 0.33 52,000 - (10,000) 42,000
31 March 2007 “ETtE=f=+—H 0.93 60,000 = = 60,000
31 March 2008 —ZENF=A=1+—H 0.45 120,000 - = 120,000
31 March 2009 “ZEZAF=A=1—H 0.11 120,000 - = 120,000
31 March 2010 “Z-ZF=-A=1+-H 0.03 60,000 - - 60,000
29 October 2010 “E-TFE+A-+AIA 0.06 = 520,000 = 520,000
31 March 2011 —E——f#=f=+-H 0.04 - 60,000 = 60,000
646,710 580,000 (35,330) 1,191,380
Exercisable at the RAFEERA{THE
end at the year 611,380
Weighted average MEFHATREET)
exercise price (US$) 0.56 0.06 0.91 0.31
Holders of the share EERIERE A
options are analysed AT :
as follows:
Directors EEd 80,000 - = 80,000
Employees = 566,710 580,000 (35,330) 1,111,380
646,710 580,000 (35,330) 1,191,380
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31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONT'D)

Share option scheme of The Singing Machine Company,
Inc. (“SMC”), a 51.69% (2011: 51.86%) owned subsidiary
of the Company (CONT’'D)

The above options were granted for an exercise period of
nine years from the date on which the options are vested.

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the
services received is measured based on the Black-Scholes
pricing model.

Fair value of share options and assumptions:

31.

BBRESTE(E)

KRARFEE51.69% (ZF——F :51.86%)
f # 2 Mf B 2 T The Singing Machine
Company, Inc. ([SMCJ) ZBIR#EEI(&)

NEBEERBERESERARENLFA
1I6E »

PR LR EMEG 2 R 2 R FEETS
SEMBRHBEREZ X FEENE - AEUS
Rz A HEEDZEA DR - SR EER
A fhEt e

BREZ AFEERMRR

Grant date 29.10.2010 31.3.2011 31.3.2012
—2-TF -B-——F -B-=F
% B THE=HhE =H=#H#—"H =H=F—H
Fair value at measurement RErE2 A2z AFEECER)
date (US$) 0.05 0.03 0.11
Share price (US$) B (=) 0.06 0.04 0.12
Exercise price (US$) TEE(ET) 0.06 0.04 0.12
Expected volatility TEET R I8 283.9% 283.9% 341.4%
Expected option life (years) TAET IR HARR (57) 1 1 1
Expected dividend yield TR ARG B 0% 0% 0%
Risk-free interest rate f [ B A1) 3R 0.2% 0.3% 0.19%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the SMC's share price over the previous one
year. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted,
based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of
non transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural
considerations. Changes in the subjective input assumptions
could materially affect the fair value estimate.

The Group recognised total expense of HK$144,000 (2011:
HK$98,000) for the year in relation to share options granted
by SMC.
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32.

33.

ZFZA=+—HILFE

WARRANTS

On 10 September 2010, the Company entered into two
conditional placing agreements with two independent
subscribers in relation to private placing of an aggregate of
155,000,000 warrants to the subscribers at the issue price of
HK$0.01 per warrant. The proceeds from the warrant placing
of HK$1,550,000 were recorded in warrant reserve.

The warrants entitle the subscribers to subscribe for new
shares at an initial subscription price of HK$0.33 per share
(subject to anti-dilutive adjustment) for a period of 12 months
commencing from the date of issue of the warrants. During
the year ended 31 March 2011, 30,000,000 (2012: nil) new
shares were issued on exercise of the warrants. Further details
of the warrant issue are set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 10 September 2010.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, no registered holder
of the remaining warrants exercised their rights to subscribe
for ordinary shares in the Company. The warrants lapsed
on 10 September 2011 and the remaining proceeds from
the warrant placing of HK$1,250,000 was transferred from
warrant reserve to accumulated profits/losses.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes the borrowings disclosed in note 28 net of cash and
cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

32.

33.

AR EE
RZZE—ZTFNATH  ARFERBEL
REBAGILMNE GHRESHE - NAE B
RETEEMRAREZIABTAREA
FLABLE A ££155,000,0001) RAXHERE - B
B& i B L & 2 P18 5K 781,550,000 JLE &1
ARBRIEE 1 -

RREFER T REAEF - 7] R RBREE
A1 H%tﬁnﬂﬁ%ﬁ&@i%%ﬁs
BR0.33 8 L (AT 1T REESE AR ) RE R
Bl ob‘A%z —E——F=A=+—HLHF
B EARREEETEEF1730,000,000
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33.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’'D)  33.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
regularly. As part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. The Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and
share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

EXEREE(E)
ARARES MR ARRE © RiTZ 3
DAEEEBARREREFARFIE 2
R AEEEBBIEERS - HITHB
- BERY - BT HRGREE RS &
£ FERRASEE -

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 34. €@TH
Categories of financial instruments SR T E/MER
31.3.2012 31.3.2011
—E——fF —E——%F
=H=+-—H =A=+—8
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Financial assets TREE
Available-for-sale investments AHHEZIRE 9,400 24,040
Investments held for trading FHEEBEZIRE 1,594 2,252
Financial assets designated at EEREAFEETA
fair value through BRzemEE
profit or loss 18 20
Loans and receivables Bk ERFIA
(including cash and (BRFELMREEEER)
cash equivalents) 171,257 237,408
Financial liabilities cRIBE
Derivative financial instruments PTEeRITA 17 =
Other financial liabilities RESHCART AR 2
at amortised cost Hihe@aE 275,020 369,651
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34.

——HFZA=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D) 3. ERMIA(E)
Financial risk management objectives and policies KRR EEBEREE
The Group's major financial instruments include debtors AEETEcHTASRERIKEBERIES
and deposits, available-for-sale investments, investments AHHEZIRE  RIEEBEZRE T4
held for trading, derivative financial instruments, financial BMTE - - ETAERATEEBESAEBRHZZEH
assets designated at fair value through profit or loss, bank BE SO GFELERSE  ENEBEEEE o
balances and cash, creditors and borrowings. Details of these hEeMTAFBEREBNERESE - BzE
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The ST B2 R KRR R 2 R R
risks associated with these financial instruments and the TX - EREEELERZFRER - ﬁﬁﬁ&
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. BERETESHEE - ANEBZEZRBBR
The management manages and monitors these exposures to EER o
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.
Currency risk =3
Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency ARABZRMBRRICEBEERE GBI
denominated monetary assets and liabilities, which expose KB ME - BREARE B EAEINE RS
the Group to foreign currency risk.
The carrying amounts of the group entities’ foreign currency EEREIUINEHECEBEEREKEE
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities (mainly (IETEEH&EEE CERITAEER - FE{TBRIE -
represented by debtors, bank balances, creditors, trust receipts SRWERADER BHERTEZR - 56
and import loans, short term bank loans, loans related to BERERBEZE 2 ER - GREEEEZIA
bills discounted with recourse, debt factoring loans and MEMERREE)RNHEHBARZRAEAE
other loans and borrowings) at the end of the reporting mr
period are as follows:
2012 2011
—E—-CfF —F——F
Assets  Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE =N BE af&
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FHET
Euro BT - 99 41 146
Hong Kong dollars &I 258,145 442,008 264,512 551,956
Japanese yen H 191 - 200 -
Renminbi AR 38,489 465 16,036 201
Swiss Franc T RS 165 - 214
United States dollars = 350,894 106,221 382,323 176,165
ﬂlﬁ][‘%’ﬁﬁﬁ’/}ﬁ 129
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’'D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONT'D)

Currency risk (CONT'D)

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The group entities are mainly exposed to foreign currency
risk from Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and United States
dollars. Under the pegged exchange rate system, the financial
impact on exchange difference between Hong Kong dollars
and United States dollars will be immaterial and therefore
no sensitivity analysis has been prepared.

The following table details the group entities’ sensitivity
to @ 5% increase and decrease in Hong Kong dollars and
Renminbi against each group entity’s functional currency
(including Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi). 5% is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change
in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes
only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and adjusts their translation at the year end for a 5%
change in foreign currency rates. A positive number below
indicates a decrease in loss for the year where Hong Kong
dollars and Renminbi strengthen 5% against each group
entity’s functional currency. For a 5% weakening of Hong
Kong dollars and Renminbi against each group entity’s
functional currency, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the loss for the year.
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34.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONT'D)

ERMITE(E)
BREREEEERBE(E)

Currency risk (CONT’'D) Bl mk (&)

Sensitivity analysis (CONT'D) BRE DN (&)
2012 2011
=F-=F —F——5F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEx FHBIT
Hong Kong dollars 7SI (9,193) (14,372)
Renminbi AR 1,901 792

In addition, the Group is also exposed to currency risk
concerning certain amounts due from/to group entities, which
are denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the relevant group entities. When Renminbi
strengthens 5% (2011:
currency, loss for the year of the Group will decrease by
HK$4,713,000 (2011: HK$3,855,000) and vice versa.

5%) against the relevant foreign

In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as
the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the year.

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group has cash flow interest rate risk on floating-
rate borrowings. The Group currently does not have any
policy on cash flow hedges of interest rate risk. However,
the management monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate risk should the
need arise.

The interest expenses on the Group’s floating-rate borrowings
are mainly linked with HIBOR.

b AN+ AN 5 B O Bt R UL FE AT & B K B A
HEAMEEBUIINZEEFEZE TR
EEREERRK ZARENB@INEF
B5% (ZF——F :5%)F ' A£EBEFR
BB SR 44,713,000 (=T — — & :
3,855,000 7T) * RZINA o

%i@,’u/uﬁ E'E EZHK““IE&@QEWZ
Ekz - HEBRES T IRKREBINERRE -

REREFEER
AEBEFREEARRSRENERR - K
S BB A ERBEABRE AR RERN
K@ o A ERESEENXRR R
BREEREFEBHREANEER

AEBEFEEEZNEAXEIEREFTER
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONT'D)

Cash flow interest rate risk (CONT'D)

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for floating-rate borrowings
at the end of the reporting period (note 28). The analysis
is prepared assuming the amount of liability outstanding
at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the
whole year. A 50 basis point increase or decrease represents
the management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and
all other variables were held constant, the Group’s loss for
the year ended 31 March 2012 would increase/decrease by
HK$681,000 (2011: HK$910,000). This is mainly attributable
to the Group's exposure to interest rates on its floating-rate
borrowings.

In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the year.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONT'D)

Price risk

The Group's derivative financial instruments, financial assets
designated at fair value through profit or loss and held-for-
trading investments are measured at fair value at the end
of the reporting period. Therefore, the Group is exposed
to price risk. The management manages this exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of investments with different
risk profiles.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to price risk at the end of the reporting

period.

If the prices of the respective financial instruments had been
5% higher/lower, loss for the year ended 31 March 2012
would decrease/increase by HK$80,000 (2011: HK$114,000)
as a result of the changes in fair value of derivative financial
instruments, financial assets designated at fair value through
profit or loss and held-for-trading investments.

In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent price risk as the year end
exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.

34.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONT'D)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations
as at 31 March 2012 and 2011 in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of those
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial

position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debt and other receivables
at the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liguid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in North America. The trade debtors
located in North America accounted for 94% (2011: 96%)
of the Group’s total trade debtors as at 31 March 2012. The
Group also has concentration of credit risk by customers as
26% (2011: 35%) and 38% (2011: 44%) of the total trade
debtors was due from the Group’'s largest customer and
the five largest customers respectively. In the opinion of
the directors, all five largest customers are customers with
good reputation and creditability.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONT'D)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains sufficient reserve of cash and adequate
committed line of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirement in the short and long
term. The Group finances its working capital requirements
through a combination of funds generated from operations
and borrowings. The management monitors the utilisation of

borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. For non-derivative
financial liabilities, the table has been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

For derivative instruments settled on a net basis, undiscounted
net cash outflows are presented, based on the contractual
maturities as the management considers that the contractual
maturities are essential for any understanding of the timing
of the cash flows of derivatives.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D) 3. EWMIA(E)
Financial risk management objectives and policies BEREMEEBEEZEREE(E)
(CONT'D)
Liquidity risk (CONT'D) MEE SRR (E)
Liquidity and interest risk tables BB R FFE R
Repayable
on demand
and Total
Effective  less than 1-3 3 months undiscounted  Carrying
interest rate 1 month months ~ to 1year  cash flows  amounts
RERR
S A RERBE
ERFIZE EE 1-388 3EAZE1E MEEH HREE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% THL THT THL THL TAR
2012 -E--%
Non-derivative FTESRER
financial liabilities
Creditors B ERIE - 40,171 35,431 - 75,602 75,602
Borrowings (£ 2.8 133,517 50,421 16,213 200,151 199,418
173,688 85,852 16,213 275,753 275,020
Derivative - net settlement {TAEIE-LFEEELE
Options Bk 17 - - 17 17
2011 —B—-f
Non-derivative FTESRER
financial liabilities
Creditors JEfTERE - 71,290 42,220 - 113,510 113,510
Amount due to an associate  FE{ B & A R]ERIE - 2,809 - - 2,809 2,809
Borrowings BE 2.6 102,653 125,953 25,830 254,436 253,332
176,752 168,173 25,830 370,755 369,651
Fair value AT EE

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are

determined as follows:

. the fair values of financial assets and financial

liabilities with standard terms and conditions and

traded on active liquid markets are determined with

reference to quoted market bid prices and ask prices,

respectively;
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’'D)
Fair value (CONT'D)

the fair values of other financial assets and financial
liabilities (excluding derivative instruments and financial
assets designated at fair value through profit or loss)
are determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis;
and

the fair values of derivative instruments and financial
assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
are determined by securities brokers using valuation
models based on inputs such as share price, volatility,
dividend yield of the underlying equity securities.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying

amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded

at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements

approximate to their fair values.

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated

statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments

that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair

value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to

which the fair value is observable.

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for
identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices).

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’'D) 34, €T R(£Z)
Fair value (CONT'D) AFEE(E)
Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated REEUBRABRPEI 2L FEEHNE
statement of financial position (CONT'D) (%)

At 31 March 2012
R-ZE——-F=H=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Total
E—® -t 1 @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTiERT FERT FHET
Investments held for trading BIEEBEZERE 1,594 - 1,594
Financial assets designated BT ARAFEE
at fair value AR CREE
through profit or loss - 18 18
1,594 18 1,612
Derivative financial liabilities METREE 17 - 17
At 31 March 2011
R=ZFE——F=A=+—8H
Level 1 Level 2 Total
E— -~ et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT T
Investments held for trading BIEEEZRE 2,252 = 2,252
Financial assets designated EERRAFEESAER
at fair value ZEBMEE
through profit or loss - 20 20
2,252 20 2,272
There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 during RREFENRN @ £ —REE K2 EILEE
both years. fAE% -
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35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 35. EAKIE
2012 2011
—E-C=F —T——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Capital expenditure in respect HEEWE  BERREBEEED
of acquisition of property, BREGEVBREREHEZ
plant and equipment contracted BRI
for but not provided in
the consolidated financial statements 440 287

36. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

As lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

36. WEHWER
ERFHA

RBEHRRR - REBRIBTAIHEZ A
AMELEBRHAR THBRE AN 2 RE K

operating leases in respect of rented premises as follows: RIS AEWDT
2012 2011
—E-—fF —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Within one year —FRX 8,414 8,041
In the second to fifth years inclusive E_EZFENF(HEMEBREEN) 3,691 9,879
12,105 17,920

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for its office and warehouses. Leases are negotiated
for terms ranging from one to five years (2011: one to five
years) and rentals are fixed over the lease terms.

REBONTEREBZHAERAEZE
e HOKEBRREER —ERF(=
T——%: —ERF)TE MASRELY

HAREER °

FEEIRERA
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36.

37.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
(CONT'D)

As lessor
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted

with tenants for future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

36.

REHENERE(E)

EREBEA

RBERBR - REAKBERBEERIT 2T
AREEGERL - RT 5 HREEAERZ KRR
REHESWOT :

2012 2011

—E-—F —T——F

HK$000 HK$'000

FBT FHET

Within one year —FR" 5,980 3,007
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EERF(HEMEBEERN) 19,225 332
Over five years AR T 19,820 -
45,025 3,339

These properties have committed tenants for terms ranging
from one to ten years (2011: one to two years).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group pledged
certain assets with the following carrying values to secure
the general credit facilities granted to the Group and the
margin accounts with securities brokers:

37.

kSN2 AFRNFRBA—ET TS
(Z®——% : —EWF) -

EEERMA

RIS MR - AEBERE T EEFRAH
- REEREREFERBREFOZE
R REAEZREBMT :

2012 2011
—E--F —ET——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHBIT
Investment properties wEMFE 137,600 -
Bills discounted with recourse BREREHBREER
and factored debtor balances B AL IR FE AR B 45 64 46,927 174,995
Leasehold properties HEWZE 6,596 -
Deposits with securities brokers BENEREKE
as included in debtors, Re RFEMNKRES 2
deposits and prepayments BHLRL RS 98 1,130
Investments held for trading FHEEBEZREAE 23 385
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38.

39.

ZFZA=+—HILFE

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group principally operates defined contribution retirement
schemes for all qualifying employees, including directors.
The assets of the schemes are held separately from those
of the Group in funds under the control of independent

trustees.

The Group participates in the MPF Scheme implemented by
the Hong Kong Government for all qualifying employees in
Hong Kong. The assets of the scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in funds under the control of trustee.
The Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs with a
cap of monthly contribution HK$1,000 to the MPF Scheme
for employees except for executive directors of the Company,
for which there is no cap on monthly contribution.

The employees employed in the PRC subsidiaries are members
of the state-managed retirement benefits schemes operated
by the PRC government. The PRC subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their basic payroll to
the retirement benefits schemes to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefits schemes is to make the required contributions
under the schemes.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into the following related party
transactions.

(a) The Group maintained current accounts with associates.
Their balances as at 31 March 2011 were set out in
the consolidated statement of financial position with
the terms disclosed in note 24.

(b) During the year, an associate waived an amount
advanced to the Group amounting to HK$2,809,000
(2011: nil).
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40.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT'D)

(c) During the year, the Group paid salaries and other
short term employee benefits of HK$1,219,000 (2011:
HK$1,272,000) to certain close family members of
Mr. Lau Sak Hong, Philip, a director and a substantial
shareholder of the Company, as employees of the
Group.

(d) Compensation of key management personnel

Details of the remuneration of key management
personnel, who are the executive directors, during
the year are set out in note 9.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The following events took place subsequent to 31 March
2012:

(a) On 25 April 2012, the Company granted a total of
49,350,000 share options to directors and employees
of the Group at an exercise price of HK$0.105 per
share and vested immediately under the terms of the
New Scheme.

Starlight International Holdings Limited
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40. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(CONT'D)

(b)

On 26 April 2012, the Company and Mr. Lau Shek
Yuen (the “Subscriber”) entered into a subscription
agreement to subscribe for 1.5% coupon convertible
notes in principal amount of HK$36,300,000 due
eighteen months from the issue of the convertible
notes and at an initial conversion price of HK$0.104
(subject to anti-dilutive adjustment) per share of the
Company. An ordinary resolution was passed at the
special general meeting of the Company held on 15
June 2012 to approve the subscription agreement and
the transactions contemplated thereunder. Completion
of the subscription agreement is subject to other
conditions as set out in the paragraph headed
“Conditions precedent” in the Company’s circular
dated 1 June 2012. Based on the initial conversation
price of HK$0.104 per conversion share, a maximum
number of approximately 349,038,461 conversation
shares will be allotted and issued upon exercise of the
conversion rights attached to the convertible notes
in full, which represent: (i) approximately 23.33%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at 31
March 2012; and (ii) approximately 18.92% of the
issued and enlarged share capital of the Company.

The principal amount of subscription of the convertible
notes of HK$36,300,000 will be satisfied by setting
off against an amount of HK$36,300,000 owed by
the Company to the Subscriber (see note 28). The
Subscriber is a shareholder of the Company and a
brother of Mr. Lau Sak Hong, Philip, Mr. Lau Sak
Kai, Anthony, Mr. Lau Sak Yuk, Andy and Ms. Lau
Chu Lan, Carol, all being executive directors of the
Company.

40. HEHBEEMH(E)

(b)

RZZE——FWMA=-+H  ARQ

AIEBBREE(TREBADIL
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36,300,000 7T B 4T H 12 + N\
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41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 41. TEHBELF
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as AKRBlZ ETENBARIGEBAT ¢
follows:
Place of Nominal value of
incorporation issued ordinary Attributable
or registration/ share capital/ equity interest
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital to the Group Principal activities
LA L B at BETEER REBER
NG it/ 2 2 R,/ EAEE R RE TEXK
2012 2011
R e
ACME Delight Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Investment holding
HEER QA s 28T REZRK
Cosmo Communications United States US$1,571,000 93.8% 93.8%  Trading in electrical
Corporation of America/ appliances and
Canada investment holding
X8/ MeX 1,571,000 7T EREMEHMREER
Korrigan Industrial Hong Kong HK$25,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Holdings Limited
BHYEEXERRAAF BE 25,000,000/ 7T REEK
Master Light Enterprises Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited
BEECERRARA 5 28T REER
Merrygain Holding Company ~ Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 96% 96%  Property investment
Limited
YEHEEERANF B 5,000,000/ 7T NERE
Nice States Investment Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
Limited
s 28T MERE
144 Starlight International Holdings Limited
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41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D) 41. T ERBEAT (&)

Place of Nominal value of
Attributable

equity interest

incorporation issued ordinary

or registration/ share capital/

Name of subsidiary operations registered capital to the Group Principal activities
LAY L B At BETEER REBER
i NCEE iVA=F 31 BRA,/ M E A EE AR RE R TEEK
2012 2011
S
Niceday Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Investment holding
EHERRA BB 2B REZER
Noble Win Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
BRERAF BB 2B MERE
SIH Limited British Virgin HK$10,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Islands
ABEARES 10,000 7T REEK
Star Fair Electronics Hong Kong HK$15,090,000 100% 100%  Trading in electronic
Company Limited products
EBRETERAA BB 15,090,000/ 7T EFEMmESD
Star Fair Manufacturing Jersey/PRC £12 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Company Limited*** electronic products
BRS,/HE 12588 ETEMRENHE
Star Legend Offshore British Virgin US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited*** Islands
HERBRHEE 17T REER
Star Light Electronics Hong Kong HK$13,000,000 100% 100%  Trading in electronic
Company Limited products and property
investment
HRAEFER AT BE 13,000,000/ 70 ETEMESIMERE
FEBEBRE R D &

e |
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41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D) 41. T EWB AR (&

Place of Nominal value of
Attributable

equity interest

incorporation issued ordinary

or registration/ share capital/

Name of subsidiary operations registered capital to the Group Principal activities
AL AR L B aE BETEER REBER
NG fit,/ & %18 R,/ EMEREE N TEXK
2012 2011
e e
Starleaf Development Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Investment holding
EERRBRAA s 2B T REER
Starlight Exports Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Trading in electronic
products and
property investment
AREOERAF N 287 ETERBSINERE
Starlight Industrial Holdings Hong Kong HK$73,920,192 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited
TREBERRAF BE 73,920,192 T REEK
Starlight Manufacturers Jersey/PRC HK$100,000 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Limited electronic products
ERE,/ T 100,000 7 BETERBERKE
Starlight Marketing Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Trading and marketing of
Development Limited electronic products
FETSHERARA R N 287 ETERESREH
Starlight Marketing Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Securities trading and
trading in electronic
products
T TSR AR QA BB 28T EREERETEME D
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41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D) 41. T ERBEAT (&)

Place of Nominal value of
Attributable

equity interest

incorporation issued ordinary

or registration/ share capital/

Name of subsidiary operations registered capital to the Group Principal activities
LAY AL B aE BETEBER REBER
MEARERE iVA=F %1 RA/EMEREE AR TEEHK
2012 2011
=E-CF 2 F
Starlight R&D Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Material sourcing and
trading in electronic
products and components
TR AR A A 5 10,000 7T WEHREE R
ETEMRBHES
Starlight Video Limited Hong Kong HK$4 100% 100%  Provision of nominee
services for group
companies and
trading of electronic
products
AEZEERAT 5 4T AREARRMENRE
REREFERES
Starlite Consumer Electronics ~ Cayman Islands HK$2 100% 100%  Tradinginelectronicproducts
(USA) Inc.
HEHE 25T EfERES
Starlite Consumer Electronics  United States Us$20 100% 100%  Tradinginelectronicproducts
(USA) Inc. of America
EE 20T BEFEMES
Starlight Electronics USA Inc.  United States Us$10,000 100% 100%  Tradinginelectronic products
of America
xHE 10,000%7T BfEREH
Success Base Industries Hong Kong HK$4,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Limited plastic products
BHREZFAR AR £ 4,000,000/ 7T PREMBERIHE
FEBEBRE R D &
—z——gFm |14/
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D)

Place of
incorporation
or registration/

Nominal value of
issued ordinary
share capital/

41.

TENBARE

Attributable
equity interest

Name of subsidiary operations registered capital to the Group Principal activities
LAY L B aE BETEER REBER
o NCEg fit,/ & %18 BRA,/EMEREE PR TEXK
2012 2011
T
The Singing Machine United States US$378,357 51.69% 51.86%  Trading in consumer
Company, Inc. ("SMC")** of America karaoke audio equipment
and electronic products
X 378,357% T HERAOKE ZR1E
REFTEMES
Top Spring Technology British Virgin Us$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited Islands
REERARES (E REER
Starfair Manufacturing (Panyu) PRC* HK$33,300,000 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Company Limited electronic products and
property investment
BEMNEBEFHIEBRAA F R+ 33,300,000/ 7T ETEMBRENHE
RWFERE
Fortune Garden Development  PRC* RMB31,750,000 100% 100%  Property investment
Company Limited
EEEREEFHERRAR  HE* AR#31,750,0007C NERE
Panyu Success Base Plastic PRC* HK$20,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Company Limited plastic products
BEREHEBHRERDA F R+ 20,000,000/ 7T BREMBENHE
Panyu Starfair Electronics PRC* HK$21,500,000 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Manufacturing Company electronic products
Limited
EREEESHEERAR FE 21,500,000 7T 100% 100% EFEMRENHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e W ERE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2012

#HE=-T

41.

42,

——HFZA=+—HIFE

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D)

* These subsidiaries are PRC wholly foreign owned
enterprises.

** The common stock of SMC is quoted on the Over-the-
Counter Bulletin Board in the United States of America.

***  These subsidiaries were not classified as principal
subsidiaries at 31 March 2012.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affect the results
of the year or constitute a substantial portion of the net
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars
of excessive length.

Other than SIH Limited and Star Legend Offshore Limited
which are held directly by the Company, all other subsidiaries
are held indirectly by the Company. None of the subsidiaries
had any loan capital outstanding at the end of the year or
at any time during the year.

INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of reporting period includes:

41.

42.

TEMEARE)
* BEHBARATESEEACE -

* SMCZEBEBAREXBESBINRZHE
RBRE -

wx WZF-—#=A=+-8 %%
HEARL KRS EAREENE

A .

EERBLERAINADRMB AR IHAF
BZREREENTE IBKNAEEEE
FEXZERD EZRRURHEMCHER
Blz#E BLEMBRIUE -

BRSIH Limited&Star Legend Offshore
Limited R AR RIEERFAIN - A H A
BARARKNARIRERE - RAFEHA
FRAEAER - HEMBRAFEMKRE
BEEER -

EBRARAMBRARERZ
'

R AR - HEARAMSKRREZ
ARBFINT

2012 2011
—ZT-—F —E——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Unlisted investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZELETEE 72,184 122,184
Amounts due from subsidiaries JiE W /B8 A R BR I8 633,304 731,307
Bank balances RITHETF 261 8,323
Other current assets HEthmeEE 41 2,961
Total assets BEBE 705,790 864,775
Accrued charges JEE T & A 1,040 819
Amounts due to subsidiaries FESTHT B A =) 8RB 226,252 227,728
Net assets BEFE 478,498 636,228
Share capital & 2 149,571 150,524
Reserves (note) () 328,927 485,704
Total equity B 478,498 636,228
AR ERAT
—z-—gFm | 140
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For the year ended 31 March 2012

#HE-T

42,

——FZA=+—HILFE

INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF 42,
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY B (F

(CONT’'D)
Note:

Movements of the Company’s reserves during the current

i -

RRAARRFBMRABRZ

ARABBRATERBETE LD

and the prior years are as follows: (I
HK$'000
FAIT
At 1 April 2010 RZZE—ZTFMWMA—H 224,878
Capital reorganisation N 235,527
Issue of shares upon open offer NRABEREITRN 12,562
Expenses in relation to open offer BALREEZRAX (2,780)
Issue of warrants BITRREFE 1,550
Issue of shares upon exercise TR AR ZITRG
of share options 5,972
Issue of shares upon exercise of warrants 771 R A% #E 2B B 3£ 77 B {9 6,900
Recognition of equity-settled RAE A E AR S 2 3
share-based payments 1,040
Total comprehensive income for the year  AFE2EWNEEHE 55
At 31 March 2011 R=ZE——F=A=+—H 485,704
Recognition of equity-settled R AR S S5 E A RRD S 2 3K
share-based payments 410
Repurchase of shares i B i 17 (11
Total comprehensive expense for the year ANFE2E L A (157,176)
At 31 March 2012 R-E——F=A=+—H 328,927
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

HFEBE

Year ended 31 March
HE=A=1T—-HILEE

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
(Restated)
—TTN\EFE —TENFE —T-TF —T——F EB-_F
FAT FAT FTAT FTAT FTEx
(&)
RESULTS ESo
Turnover L] 2,199,033 1,281,062 738,262 637,633 631,830
Profit (loss) before taxation BRI AR A (&) 64,025 (118,408)  (75,712)  (43,074) (183,085)
Taxation 18 (18,531) (1,280) 195 (840)  (10,434)
Profit (loss) for the year AEERM(ER) 45,494  (119,688)  (75,517)  (43,914) (193,519)
Attributable to: TH AL :
Owners of the Company ARAEAA 45,914  (110,186)  (65,827)  (41,216) (194,862)
Non-controlling interests FEIE R (420) (9,502) (9,690) (2,698) 1,343
45,494  (119,688)  (75,517)  (43,914) (193,519)
At 31 March
W=A=+-8H
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
(Restated)
—TT)N\FE —TENEFE ZT-TF —T——F E-_F
FAT FET FAT FAT FTix
(mz7)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHEE
Total assets BELE 1,474,310 1,197,492 987,725 1,082,652 834,188
Total liabilities BELE 674,534 521,795 369,344 409,159 316,356
799,776 675,697 618,381 673,493 517,832
Equity attributable to owners N/NGIEZ N
of the Company FEfh R 781,739 665,100 616,998 674,683 517,543
Non-controlling interests FEE R A 18,037 10,597 1,383 (1,190) 289
799,776 675,697 618,381 673,493 517,832
The financial information for the year ended 31 March 2010 has been REBEE-ET-—FTE=F=1+—HIIFEEHBEEHE

restated to reflect the effect of early adoption of Amendments to HKAS
12 titled “Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying assets” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The financial information for
the two years ended 31 March 2008 and 2009 has not been adjusted.

REY  URREPRABTESAMRIGRT 2 FE
SEHERE12RNEEHE - WERBEE | ZETA
B BE_ETT\FR_FTNF=ZA=1—H
IEMEFEZMBER L EETHE -

FEEIR AR A
—E-CFFH
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SUMMARY OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

REVFEE

AEE

BHEE LR
BERDESAEZREDE (FFFR) MEME Attributable
Investment properties Gross floor Nature interest HAODHE
held for rental purposes area (sq. ft.) of property to the Group Category of lease
BB S8 EWEE 1855 2,280 S 100% REAMEL
EREBKE13##BC D Commercial Long leases
Units B, C and D on
13th Floor of
Guangdong Tours Centre
No. 18 Pennington Street
Causeway Bay
Hong Kong
BEBB BB RE2325 12,079 I%* 100% REAEL
HELFKNE181E Industrial Long leases
18th Floor
Shing Dao Industrial Building
No. 232 Aberdeen Main Road
Aberdeen
Hong Kong
BEBBIF BB RE2325 12,079 I%* 100% REAEL
HELERE 161 Industrial Long leases
16th Floor
Shing Dao Industrial Building
No. 232 Aberdeen Main Road
Aberdeen
Hong Kong
BARB B BB RE2325 13,974 I%* 100% REAEL
WA T ERE14E Industrial Long leases
14th Floor
Shing Dao Industrial Building
No. 232 Aberdeen Main Road
Aberdeen
Hong Kong
EBBEBFEBFARE2325% 13,974 2 96% REATAAY
WELHERE1212 Industrial Long leases
12th Floor
Shing Dao Industrial Building
No. 232 Aberdeen Main Road
Aberdeen
Hong Kong
BAEB BT E B RE23255 13,974 I 100% REAMEL
WAL HEKRE6HE Industrial Long leases
6th Floor
Shing Dao Industrial Building
NO. 232 Aberdeen Main Road
Aberdeen
Hong Kong
BRI E SR AR 180,924 I 100% AR Y
MEE A ENER 15 Industrial Medium term leases
Hp B N T 2 R A A A 1L R 66,852 [GES 100% REATR A
R F R EHER Commercial Long leases
B B T 2 S A BRI LA [ 3,162 F=E 100% REAL
B ANE2 5 = e ss — 506 £ 508 % Residential Long leases
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